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 IND AS 19 
A2. Accumulating paid absences are those that are carried forward and can be used in future periods if 

current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Accumulating paid absences may be either 

• Vesting: employees are entitled to a cash payment for unused entitlement or  

• Non-vesting: employees are not entitled to a cash payment for unused entitlement hence the 

obligation for such leaves are measured based on probability of leave that is expected to be availed 

by the employee. The entity will recognise liability in the books equal to 150 (30 x 5) days of paid 

casual leaves and 10 (10 x 1) days of sick pay. 

 

A5. An entity shall recognise expected cost of profit-sharing & bonus payments when, and only when: 

i. entity has a present legal/constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events & 

ii.  a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. 

 Measurement of obligation reflects the possibility that some employees may leave without 

receiving a bonus. The company shall recognize a liability and an expense of an amount of ` 9 

crores for the financial year 20X1-20X2 (i.e. 4.5% of `200 crores). 

 

A6. Accumulating paid absences are those that are carried forward and can be used in future periods if 

current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Accumulating paid absences may be either 

• Vesting: employees are entitled to a cash payment for unused entitlement or  

• Non-vesting: employees are not entitled to a cash payment for unused entitlement hence the 

obligation for such leaves are measured based on probability of leave that is expected to be availed 

by the employee. 

No of employees to utilised carried forward the leave    8 

 No of leave that will be utilised from carried forward leave (6.5 days -5 days) 1.5 days 

No of days for which the Provisions is to be created   (1.5 days * 8)  12 days  

 

A7. No benefit is attributed to service before the age of 25 because service before that date does not 

lead to benefits. A benefit of ` 140 is attributed to each subsequent year. 
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 Period of service    Expense Per Year to be considered 

 Before Age of 25     0 

 Before Age of 25     140 

 

A8. Employee benefits is Present Value of following 

Period                Amount of Benefit            Years     Annual expenses 

Employees expected to leave after 20 years 

First 20 years of service        50% of expected medical cost          20  2.5% 

Any no of years after 20          Nil  

Employees expected to leave after 10 year but less than 20 years 

First 10 years of service            20%  of expected medical cost          10  2% 

Any no of years after 10          Nil  

Employees expected to leave in less than 10 years 

Any no of years less than 10         Nil  

 

A9.  Paras Pvt. Ltd. should recognise a liability for the contributions adjusted for the time value of 

money and an equal expense in profit or loss. 30 million / 10 years = 3 million per year  

 

A10.  

PV of Obligation A/c. Plan Asset A/c. 

 By Bal b/d           1400 To Bal b/d            1140  

 By Interest             112 To Actual Return   24  

 1400 * 8%   

 By CSC                   55 To Current Contri. 111  

To Bal b/d           1580 By Actuarial Loss  13  By Bal b/d            1275 

 Calculation of Net Interest  

 Interest on obligation @ 8% (1400 * 8%)    112 

 Interest on Plan asset @ 8% (1140 * 8%)      91  
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 Net Interest          21  

 Calculation of Net Actuarial G/L  

 Actual Return on Plan Asset      24 

 Interest on opening balance (expected return) (1140 * 8%)  91 

 Actuarial Loss on plan Asset      67 

 Actuarial Loss on Obligation      13 

 Net Actuarial Loss       80 

  

1. Interest A/c.…………….Dr. (Net interest P&L)   112 

 CSC…………………………Dr. (P&L)     55 

 Actuarial Loss………………Dr. (OCI)     13  

To Provision of Obligation        180  

2. Plan Asset…………………..Dr. (Current Contri.)   111 

To Cash Bank          111  

 

3. Actuarial Loss……………….Dr. (OCI)     67    

Plan Asset…………………..Dr. (Actual Return)    24 

To Expected Returns (@ 8%) (Net Interest P&L)     91 

 

Profit & Loss Extract for the year ended …………. 

Current service Cost        55 

Net Interest         21 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Remeasurement – Net Actuarial Loss       80 

 

Balance Sheet Extract as on ………………… 

PV of provision for obligation      1580 
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Less: FV of Plan Asset       (1275) 

Net defined benefit liability         305 

 

A14. Past service cost, which is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for 

employee service in prior periods, resulting from a plan amendment (introduction or withdrawal of, 

or changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a curtailment (a significant reduction by the entity in the 

number of employees covered by a plan); and Accordingly OPQ Ltd increased the pension to 3% of 

the final salary for each year of service starting from 1
st
April, 20X1 to 1

st
April,20X8. The company 

would recognize the total amount of ` 4,96,000 (i.e. ` 2,75,000 + ` 2,21,000) immediately as 

expenses (past service cost) & provision for obligation, as for the purpose of recognition it does not 

make any difference as  to whether the benefits are already vested or not. 

 

A15.  Please cancel the question   
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 IND AS 33 

A2. Solution 

The calculation of basic EPS is as follows:  

         `   ` 

Profit           100,000 

Less Dividends payable for the period: 

Preference (5,000 × ` 5)       25,000  

Ordinary (10,000 × ` 2)      20,000  (45,000) 

Undistributed earnings        55,000 

 

Allocation of undistributed earnings: 

Allocation per ordinary share = X 

.’. Allocation per preference share = 0.5X 

(X × 10,000) + (0.5X × 5,000) = ` 55,000 

.’. X = 4.4 & 0.5 X  = 2.2 

Dividend per share are:    Preference/ share Ordinary/ Share 

Distributed earnings           5.00  2.00 

Undistributed earnings          2.20  4.40 

Totals             7.20  6.40 

 

A3.  Adjustments for the purpose of calculating EPS are made as follows: 

Particulars        Amount (`̀̀̀) Amount (`̀̀̀) 

Profit after tax          150,000 

Amortisation of discount on issue of increasing-rate  

preference shares (Refer Note 1)      (18,000)  

Discount on repurchase of 8% preference shares (Refer Note 2)   1,000  (17,000) 

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders  

for BEPS (Refer Note 3-5)        1,33,000 
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Notes: 

1. The original discount on issue of the increasing-rate preference shares is treated as amortised to 

retained earnings, and treated as preference dividends for EPS purposes and adjusted against profit 

attributable to the ordinary equity holders. There is no adjustment in respect of dividend, because 

these do not commence until 20X5. Instead, the finance cost is represented by the amortisation of 

the discount in the dividend-free period. In future years, the accrual for the dividend of `20,000 will 

be deducted from profits. 

2. The discount on repurchase of the 8% preference shares has been credited to equity so should be 

added to profit. 

3. The dividend on the 5% preference shares has been charged to the income statement, because the 

preference shares are treated as liabilities, so no adjustment is required for it from the profit. 

4. No accrual for the dividend on the 8% preference shares is required, because they are non- 

cumulative. If a dividend had been declared for the year, it would have been deducted from profit 

for the purpose of calculating basic EPS, because the shares are treated as equity and the dividend 

would have been charged to equity in the financial statements. 

5. The 7% preference shares were converted at the beginning of the year, so there is no adjustment in 

respect of the 7% preference shares, because no dividend accrued in  respect of the year. The 

payment of the previous year’s cumulative dividend is ignored for EPS purposes, because it will 

have been adjusted for in the prior year. Similarly, the excess of the fair value of additional ordinary 

shares issued on conversion of the convertible preference shares over the fair value of the ordinary 

shares to which the shareholders would have been entitled under the original conversion terms 

would already have been deducted from profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders, and no 

further adjustment is required. 

 

A4. In the given situation, ` 1 per share is the excess payment made by the company amounting to ` 

1,00,000 in all. The amount of ` 1,00,000 will be deducted from the earnings of the year 20X3-

20X4 while calculating the basic EPS of year 20X3-20X4. 
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A7. The number of ordinary share equivalents that would be included in the basic EPS calculation on a 

weighted basis is as follows: (100,000 × ` 1.75) / ` 2.50 = 70,000 shares. 

 

A8.          20X2-20X3 20X1-20X2 

Calculation of earnings      `’000  `’000 

Profit for the year       550  450 

Less: Preference shares dividend     (50)  (50) 

Earnings      (A)  500  400 

Number of ordinary shares      No. of shares No. of shares 

‘000  ‘000 

Shares in issue for full year      4,000  4,000 

Capitalization issue at 
1st
October20X2    1,000    

Number of shares     (B)  5,000  4,000  

BEPS       (A/B)  10Paise 10Paise 

Basic EPS Restated for comparative  (400 / 4000 + 1000) 8 Paise   

 

A12.  Calculation of earnings for DEPS / NAPESH for DEPS 

 Profit after tax        64,000 

 Add: saving of interest (25000 * 4%)   1000 

 Less: Additional Bonus@1%       10 

 Net Increase in Profit      990 

 Less: Tax @20%      198    792 

 NAPESH         64,972    

      

A13. BEPS =  `500,000  = 0.5 

10,00,000  

 DEPS = `500,000 + ( ` 100,000 * 10%) * 0.79 = 0.498 

  10,00,000 + (1000 Bonds * 20 Shares) 
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Incremental EPS =  ` 100,000 * 10% * 0.79 = 0.395 

   1000 Bonds * 20 Shares 

It is Assume all bonds are converted to shares, even though this converts ` 100  worth of bonds into 

20 shares worth only ` 90 and is therefore not economically rational.  

 

A16. Particulars    NAPESH  WANES  EPS (`̀̀̀) 

 BEPS: 20X7    500,000  40,00,000  0.13 

  20X8    600,000  40,00,000  0.15 

 DEPS: 20X7    500,000  42,62,500  0.12 

       (40,00,000 + [630,000*(120-70)/120])  

 20X8    600,000  354,375  0.14 

       (40,00,000 + [630,000*(160-70)/160]) 

 

A18. Particulars   BEPS      DEPS  

 NAPESH   200,000     200,000 

 Converted Shares            219 

          (`25000*5%*3/12*0.7 )  

Unconverted shares          2,625 

              (`75000*5%*0.7) 

Total  (A)  200,000     202,844 

WANES: 

 Outstanding   10,00,000     10,22,500  

 Converted shares      22,500           7,500  

    ((`25,000/`100*120shares)*9m/12m)  ((`25,000/`100*120shares)*3m/12m) 

 Unconverted shares           90,000 

                (`75,000/`100*120shares) 

Total  (B)  10,22,500     11,20,000 

 EPS  (A/B)  0.196 or 0.20     0.181 or 0.18  



AJ Education Next   IND AS 33 

5 

A19.          20X3  20X2 

Trading results       `  ` 

A. Profit before interest, fair value movements and tax  895,000 825,000 

B. Interest on 8% convertible loan stock    (100,000) (75,000) 

(1250000 * 8%) (1250000 * 8%*9/12) 

         795,000 750,000 

Taxation @ 33% on (A-B)      (262,350) (247,500) 

         532,650 502,500 

C. Change in fair value of embedded option    (2,650)  (2,500) 

Net Profit after Tax       530,000 500,000 

Number of equity shares outstanding     1,500,000 1,500,000 

Basic EPS        35 paise 33 paise 

 

 Diluted EPS        20X3  20X2 

NAPESH: Profit after tax as per BEPS    530,000 500,000 

 Add Interest         67,000  50,250 

        (1250000*8%*0.67) (1250000*8%*9/12*0.67) 

 Add: Fair value change loss      1,775  1,675 

          (2650*0.67) (2500*0.67) 

Net Profit After tax    A   5,98,775 5,51,925 

 WANES: Number of equity shares for BEPS   1,500,000 15,00,000   

Add: Shares on Conversion      16,87,500 12,65,625 

               (12500*135)  (12500*135*9/12) 

Total      B   31,87,500 27,65,625 

DEPS      A/B     0.187     0.199 
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A22. BEPS      Quarters 

     First  Second Third  Fourth Full year 

Numerator (`)   1,100,000 1,200,000 (400,000) 1,000,000 2,900,000 

Denominator:      

Ordinary shares outstanding 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Retail site contingency –  3,333
1
  6,667

2
  10,000  5,000

3
 

Earnings contingency
4
 –  –  –  –  – 

Total shares   1,000,000 1,003,333 1,006,667 1,010,000 1,005,000 

Basic earnings per share (`) 1.10  1.20  (0.40)  0.99  2.89 

1 5,000 shares ×2/3 

2 5,000 shares + (5,000 shares ×1/3) 

3 (5,000shares×8/12) + (5,000shares×4/12) 

4 The earnings contingency has no effect on basic earnings per share because it is not certain 

that the condition is satisfied until the end of the contingency period. The effect is negligible for the 

fourth- quarter and full-year calculations because it is  not certain that the condition is met until the 

last day  of the period. 

    First  Second Third  Fourth Full year 

Numerator (`)   1,100,000 1,200,000 (400,000) 1,000,000 2,900,000 

Denominator:      

Ordinary shares outstanding 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Retail site contingency –  5,000  10,000  10,000  10,000 

Earnings contingency  –
5
  300,000

6
 –

7
  900,000

8 
900,000 

Total shares   1,000,000 1,305,000 1,010,000 1,910,000 1,910,000 

Diluted earnings per share (`) 1.10  0.92  (0.40)
9
  0.52  1.52 

5 Company A does not have year-to-date profit exceeding `2,000,000 at 31March 20X1. Standard 

does not permit projecting future earnings levels & including the related contingent shares. 

6 [(` 2,300,000 – ` 2,000,000) ÷ 1,000] × 1,000 shares = 300,000 shares. 
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7 Year-to-date profit is less than ` 2,000,000. 

8 [(` 2,900,000 – ` 2,000,000) ÷ 1,000] × 1,000 shares = 900,000 shares. 

9 Because the loss during the third quarter is attributable to a loss from a discontinued operation, 

the anti-dilution rules do not apply. The control number (i.e. profit or loss from, continuing 

operations attributable to the equity holders of the parent entity) is positive. Accordingly, the effect 

of potential ordinary shares is included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share. 

 

A26.  Subsidiary’s earnings per share 

Basic EPS  ` 5,400 (a) – `400 (b)  = ` 5.00 

           1,000 (c) 

Diluted EPS  ` 5,400 (d)   = ` 3.66 

  (1,000 + 75 (e) + 400(f)) 

Notes: 

(a) Subsidiary's profit attributable to ordinary equity holders. 

(b) Dividends paid by subsidiary on convertible preference shares. 

(c) Subsidiary's ordinary shares outstanding. 

(d) Subsidiary's profit attributable to ordinary equity holders (` 5,000) increased by ` 400 preference 

dividends for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share. 

(e) Incremental shares from warrants, calculated: [(` 20 – ` 10) ÷ `20] × 150. 

(f) Subsidiary's ordinary shares assumed outstanding from conversion of convertible preference shares, 

calculated: 400 convertible preference shares × conversion factor of 1. 

 

Consolidated earnings per share 

Basic EPS ` 12,000(a) + ` 4,300(b) = ` 1.63 

       10,000(c) 

Diluted EPS ` 12,000 + ` 2,928(d) + ` 55(e) + ` 1,098(f) = ` 1.61 

             10,000 
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(a) Parent's profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity. 

(b) Portion of subsidiary's profit to be included in consolidated basic earnings per share, calculated: 

(800 × ` 5.00) + (300 ×Re 1.00). 

(c) Parent's ordinary shares outstanding. 

(d) Parent's proportionate interest in subsidiary's earnings attributable to ordinary shares, calculated: 

(800 ÷ 1,000) × (1,000 shares × `3.66 per share). 

(e) Parent's proportionate interest in subsidiary's earnings attributable to warrants, calculated:  

(30 ÷ 150) × (75 incremental shares × `3.66 per share). 

(f) Parent's proportionate interest in subsidiary's earnings attributable to convertible preference shares, 

calculated: (300 ÷ 400) × (400 shares from conversion × ` 3.66 per share). 
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 IND AS 37 

A3. As per Ind AS 37 states “A past event that leads to a present obligation is called an obligating 

event. For an event to be an obligating event, it is necessary that the entity has no realistic 

alternative to settling the obligation created by the event. This is the case only: 

(a) where the settlement of the obligation can been forced by law ;or 

(b) in the case of a constructive obligation, where the event (which may be an action of the entity) 

creates valid expectations in other parties that the entity will discharge the obligation.” 

On the basis of the above, provision should be recognised as soon as the obligating event takes 

place because the entity is under legal obligation to restore the sea bed, provided the other 

recognition criteria are met. Moreover, the amount of the provision would depend on the extent of 

the obligation arising from the obligating event. In the instant case, an obligating event is the laying 

of cables under the sea. To the extent the cables have been laid down under the sea, a legal 

obligation has arisen and to that extent provision for restoration of sea bed should be recognised. 

 

A5.  As per the standard, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity should disclose a 

brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where 

practicable, an estimate of their financial effect, measured using the principles set out in Ind AS 37. 

Amount of contingent asset to be disclosed (2,50,00,000 * 85%)  2,12,50,000 

 Amount of provision to be created for        30,00,000 

 

A6. A provision is to be recognized only if there probability of making payment to settle the obligation 

is more compare to the probability of not making the payment to settle the obligation. Where there 

are a number of similar obligation, the probability of outflow to settle an obligation, is determined 

for the class of obligation as a whole, although the likelihood of outflow for any one item may be 

very small, it may be probable that outflow of resources will be require to settle the class of 

obligation as a whole e.g. warranty provisions. The expected value of the cost of repairs is: (75% of 

nil) + (20% of 1m) + (5% of 4m) = ` 4,00,000 
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A7. Measurement: Reliable estimation of obligation 

i. The amount recognised as provision, shall be the best estimate of expenditure require to settle the 

present obligation at the reporting date. 

ii. When the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision shall be present value 

of expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.  

Future events that may affect the amount require to settle the obligations shall be considered in 

amount of provision, where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. However, an 

entity does not anticipate the development of a completely new event unless it is supported by 

sufficient objective evidence. 

Calculation of obligation 

 Present Value of obligation      ` 30,00,000 

 Add: Expected Increase in obligation @ 5%     `1,50,000 

 Total           31,50,000 

 

 

A9. Reimbursement: Where some or all of the expenditure require to settle provision is expected to be 

reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when and only when it is 

virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. 

Since the understanding results in an enforceable agreement,  

 Balance sheet: Reimbursement Right (` 30,00,000 x 30%)   ` 9,00,000   

Provision will be recognised for       `30,00,000 

P&L: Net Expenses (net of reimbursement)     `21,00,000 

Reimbursement right shall be treated as a separate asset and shall not be offset with the provision.  

  

A10. Ind AS 37 provides that in rare cases it not clear whether there is a present obligation, for example, 

in a lawsuit, it may be disputed either whether certain events have occurred or whether those events 

result in a present obligation. In such a case, an entity should determine whether a present 
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obligation exits at the end of the reporting period by taking account of all available evidence, for 

example, the opinion of experts. 

In the present case, the company is not confident that whether it would win the appeal. By taking 

into account the opinion of the legal counsel, it is not sure that whether the company would win the 

appeal. On the basis of such evidence, it is more likely than not that a present obligation exists at 

the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the entity should recognise a provision. The company 

should provide for a liability of ` 1,00,00,000. 

 

A13. Onerous contract are one in which unavoidable cost of meeting the obligation under the contract 

exceeds the economic benefit expected to be received under the contract. The unavoidable cost 

under the contract reflects the least net cost of existing the contract, which is lower of:- 

i. Cost of fulfilling contract & 

ii. Any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it. 

It’s a case of onerous contact. Hence provisions will be created for least of the following 

 Cost of existing the contract       60,000 

Loss on executing the contract (500,000 – 4,50,000)   50,000  

.’. Provision         50,000 

 

A14. Financial statements deal with financial position as on the reporting date and not financial position 

in future, therefore no provision is recognised of any cost to be incurred for operating in future. i.e. 

provisions are created only for those liabilities, which are existing at the reporting date. 

Provisions shall not be for future operating losses. As the future operating loss does not meet the 

definition of liability and recognition criteria of provision, no provision is recognized for it. Since 

Ind AS 37 prohibits the recognition of future operating losses, so X Packaging Ltd. should not 

include these future operating losses in a provision for restructuring even though these losses relate 

to the disposal group. 
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A15. Constructive obligation is an obligation that is derived from entities action e.g. by established 

pattern of past practices, published policies or sufficient specific current statement through which 

entity has indicate to other parties, that it will accept certain responsibility and as a result entity has 

created valid expectation on part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities. 

As per Ind AS 37, the conditions prescribed are: 

(a) there should be detailed formal plan of restructuring; 

(b) which should have raised valid expectations in the minds of those affected that the entity would 

carry out the restructuring by announcing the main features of its plans to restructure. 

The board of directors did discuss and formalise a formal plan of winding up the operation in the 

above said state. This plan was communicated to the  parties  affected and  created a valid 

expectation in their minds that X Cements Ltd. would go ahead with its plans to close down 

operations in that state. Thus, there is a constructive obligation that needs to be provided at year-end. 

 

A17. A provision is made for a present obligation arising out of a past event (obligating event).  

Overhauling does not arise out of past event. Even a legal requirement to overhaul does not make 

the cost of overhaul a liability, because no obligation exists to overhaul the ships independently of 

the company’s future actions - the company could avoid the future expenditure by its future actions 

for example by selling the ships. So there is no present obligation. 

As per the standard, financial statements deal with the financial position of an entity at the  end of 

its reporting period and not its possible position in the future. Therefore, no provision is recognised 

for costs that need to be incurred to operate in the future. The only liabilities recognised in an 

entity’s balance sheet are those that exist at the end of the reporting period. 

Therefore, the accounting policy of X Shipping Ltd. is not correct. The company should adopt the 

component approach in Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, for accounting for the 

refurbishment cost. 
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A19. A provision of ` 60,000 has been recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold during 

the last three financial years. It is expected that the majority of this expenditure will be incurred in 

the next financial year, and all will be incurred within two years after the reporting period. 

 

A20. A provision of ` 300 million has been recognised for decommissioning costs. These costs are 

expected to be incurred between 2077 and 2087; however, there is a possibility that 

decommissioning will not take place until 2117–2127. If the costs were measured based  upon the 

expectation that they would not be incurred until 2117–2127 the provision would be reduced to ` 

136 million. The provision has been estimated using existing technology, at current prices, and 

discounted using a real discount rate of 2%. 

 

A21. Sum is to cancelled  
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 IND AS 38 
A1. An entity may have a portfolio of customer or a market share and expects that because of its efforts 

in building the customer relationship and loyalty, customer would continue to trade with the entity. 

However, in absence of any legal rights to protect or other ways to control the relationship with 

customer or loyalty of customer, the entity usually has insufficient control over the expected 

benefits hence such relationship are not considered as assets. Market share does not meet the 

definition of intangible assets as is not identifiable i.e. It is neither separable and nor arised from 

contractual or legal rights. 

 

A3. In this situation, the entity has no legal rights to the customer relationship, but exchange 

transactions have taken place that evidence separability of the asset and the control that the entity is 

able to exercise over the asset. Therefore, the list is an intangible asset. An intangible asset are 

recognised only if following conditions are met. 

a.  It is probable that expected future economic benefit attributable to asset, will flow to the entity and 

b.  Cost of asset can be measurable reliably. 

Accordingly, the entity may not recognise the asset because the cost of generating the customer list 

internally cannot be distinguished from the cost of developing the business as a whole.  

 

A4. If asset is acquired separately the cost would include the expenses directly attributed to preparing 

the asset for its intended use accordingly  

Calculation of purchase price of software 

 List price (30,00,000 - 5%)     28,50,000 

 Non refundable purchase Tax          50,000 

 Customisation cost        7,00,000 

 Total Cost       36,00,000 
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A6. If asset is acquired separately the cost would include the expenses directly attributed to preparing 

the asset for its intended use accordingly 

Particulars       Amount 

Cash paid       600,000 

Deferred consideration Present value of ` 400,000  3,63,636 

Purchase Tax       1,00,000 

Legal fees         87,000 

Consultancy fees for implementation    1,20,000 

Total cost       12,70,636   

If asset is purchased on deferred credit terms, than the asset should be recognised at its cash price 

and the difference between the cash price and the total amount payable is recognised as interest 

expense over the term of credit. 

 

A7.  Acquired in exchange of Non monetary asset: In this case, the intangible asset is recognised at its 

fair value. However, if the fair value of asset acquired is not clearly evident, than the fair value of 

asset given up should be considered to be the cost of asset acquired. If the fair value of asset 

acquired as well as asset given up is not evident then the acquired asset is recognised cost of asset 

given up. Transaction at fair value of asset received adjusted for any cash received / paid.  

.’.(a) patent is measured at ` 18,00,000, & (b) it is measured at ` 20,00,000 (18,00,000 + 2,00,000). 

 

A10.  An Asset is a resource of enterprise which is controlled by enterprise and from which future 

economic benefits are expected to be received by the enterprise. 

  An asset is considered to be in control of entity when both the following conditions are satisfied. 

1. Entity has a power to obtain economic benefit from that asset & 

2. It can restrict others from deriving the those benefits from the assets. 

Although, without doubt the skill sets of the employees make them extremely valuable to the 

company, however it does not have control over them. Merely having good HR policies would not 

make them eligible to be recognised as an intangible asset. 
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A12. X should recognise intangible asset in respect of consideration paid towards ‘Non- Compete Fee’. 

However, amount paid for obtaining skilled staff amounting to ` 30,00,000 does not meet the 

definition of intangible asset since X Ltd. has not established any right over the resource and should 

be expensed. The entity has insufficient control over the expected future economic benefits arising 

from a team of skilled staff. 

Therefore, ` 50,00,000 will be separately recognised as an intangible asset, whereas amount paid 

for obtaining skilled staff does not meet the recognition criteria. However, since it is acquired in a 

business combination, it forms part of the goodwill recognised at the acquisition date. 

 The value of goodwill is ` 1,00,00,000 (` 1,50,00,000 – ` 50,00,000). 

  

A13. If acquired in business combination: If the intangible assets are identifiable and their fair value is 

available than they are recognised as separate intangible asset at their fair values. However, if they 

are not identifiable, they are subsumed in the value of goodwill. Further No intangible assets are 

generated from the expenses incurred in research phase hence these expenses should be expensed 

out in the year of incurrence. The intangible assets arising from development phase shall be 

recognised if and only if following criteria are met. 

X Ltd. should initially recognise the acquired “in house research project’’ at its fair value i.e., ` 

10,00,000. Research cost of ` 5,00,000 and cost of ` 2,00,000 for establishing technical feasibility 

should be charged to profit & loss. Costs incurred from the point of technological feasibility/asset 

recognition criteria until the time when development costs are incurred are capitalised. So the 

intangible asset should be recognised at ` 17,00,000 (` 10,00,000 + ` 7,00,000). 

 

A17. X Pharmaceutical Ltd. is advised as under: 

1. It should recognise the drug license as an intangible asset, because it is a separate external purchase, 

separately identifiable asset and considered successful in respect of feasibility and probable future 

cash inflows. The drug license should be recorded at ` 1,00,00,000. 
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2. It should recognise the brand as an intangible asset because it is purchased as part of acquisition 

and it is separately identifiable. The brand should be amortised over a period of 15 years.  The 

brand will be recorded at ` 3,00,00,000. 

3. The advertisement expenses of ` 1,00,00,000 should be expensed off. 

4. The development cost incurred during the financial year 20X1-20X2 should be capitalised. Cost of 

intangible asset (Drug A) as on 31stMarch,20X2 

Opening cost  `5,00,00,000 

Development cost `5,00,00,000 

Total cost  `10,00,00,000 

5. Research expenses of ` 50,00,000 incurred for developing ‘Drug B’ should be expensed off since 

technological feasibility has not yet established. 

 

A18. Expenditure of ` 1,00,00,000 though increased future economic benefits, but it does not result in 

creation of an intangible asset. Such promotional cost should be expensed off. 

 

A19. Value as on 31stMarch, 20X2 

Original cost      `3,00,000 

Less:amortisation     (`60,000) 

NetValue      `2,40,000 

Value as on 31stMarch, 20X3 

Carrying Amount 01/04/20X2   2,40,000  

Impairment loss       (90,000) 

Revised Carrying Amount    1,50,000 

Depreciation for 20X2 – 20X3 (150000 / 2)     75,000 

Closing Carrying Amount       75,000    

Value as on 31stMarch, 20X4 

Carrying Amount 01/04/20X3     75,000  

Revised Carrying Amount    300,000 
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.’. Reversal of impairment loss   225,000  

Allocation of reversal of impairment loss   

Credited to P&L     90,000 

Credited to Revaluation Reserve   135,000 
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 IND AS 113 

Q3. Determination of Enterprise Value of XYZ Ltd. 

Particulars          `̀̀̀ in crore 

EBITDA as on the measurement date           40 

EV/EBITDA multiple as on the date of valuation          8 

Enterprise value of XYZ Ltd.        320 

 

Determination of subsequent measurement of XYZ Ltd. 

Particulars          `̀̀̀ in crore 

Enterprise Value of XYZ Ltd.       320 

ABC Ltd.’s share based on percentage of holding (5% of 320)     16 

Less: Liquidity discount & Non-controlling stake discount (5%+5%=10%)   (1.6) 

Fair value of ABC Ltd.’s investment in XYZ Ltd.      14.4 

 

A4. Determination of equity value of PT Ltd. 

(`̀̀̀ in crore) 

Particulars  Year 1  Year 2  Year 3  Year 4  Year 5 

Cash flows  187.1  187.6  121.8  269  278.8 

Terminal Value         3,965 

Discount rate  0.9009  0.8116  0.7312  0.6587  0.5935 

Free Cash Flow  

available to the firm 168.56  152.26  89.06  177.19  2,518.69 

Total of all years         3,105.76 

Less: Debt             (1,465) 

Add: Cash & Cash equivalent              106.14 

Equity Value of PT Ltd.        1,746.90 

No. of Shares                 85,284,223 

Per Share Value            204.83 
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  A5.  Equity Valuation of KK Ltd. 

Particulars       Weights  (`̀̀̀ in crore) 

As per Market Approach     50    5268.2 

As per Income Approach     50    3235.2 

Enterprise Valuation based on weights (5268.2 x 50%) + (3235.2 x 50%)  4,251.7 

Less: Debt obligation as on measurement date                (1465.9) 

Add: Surplus cash & cash equivalent         106.14 

Add: Fair value of surplus assets and liabilities         312.40 

Enterprise value of KK Ltd.        3204.33 

No. of shares           85,284,223.00 

Value per share            375.72 
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 IND AS 1 

A1. Yes, it is possible for an entity to make an unreserved and explicit statement of compliance with Ind 

AS, even though the auditor’s report contains a qualification because of disagreement on 

application of Accounting Standard(s), as the preparation of financial statements is the 

responsibility of the entity’s management and not the auditors. In case the management has a 

bonafide reason to believe that it has complied with all Ind AS, it can make an explicit and 

unreserved statement of compliance with Ind AS. 

 

A2. As per Ind AS 1, when preparing financial statements, management shall make an assessment of an 

entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. An entity shall prepare financial statements on a 

going concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease trading, or 

has no realistic alternative but to do so. When management is aware, in making its assessment, of 

material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the 

entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, the entity shall disclose those uncertainties. An 

entity is required to disclose the facts and reason, if financial statements are not prepared on a going 

concern basis. While assessing the going concern assumption, an entity is required to take into 

consideration all factors covering atleast but not limited to 12 months from end of reporting period.  

On basis of Ind AS 1 and facts & circumstances of this case, following disclosure is appropriate: 

Extracts from the notes to entity XYZ’s 31st March, 20X7 financial statements 

Note 1: Basis of preparation 

On the basis of management’s assessment at 31 March 20X7, the financial statements have been 

prepared on the going concern basis. However, management’s assessment assumes that the 

government will reintroduce limited plastic import tariffs and that the currency exchange rate will 

remain constant. On 15
st
 March 20X7, the government announced that limited import tariffs will be 

imposed in 20X8. However, the government emphasised that the tariff would not be as protective 

as the 40 % tariff in effect before 20X7. 

Provided that INR does not strengthen, management projects/forecasts that a 10 percent tariff on all  

plastic  products  would  result  in  entity  XYZ  returning to profitability.  As at 31st March, 20X7 
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entity XYZ had net assets of INR 1,000. If import tariffs are not imposed and currency exchange 

rates remain unchanged, entity XYZ’s liabilities could exceed its assets by the end of financial year 

20X7-X8. On the basis of their assessment of these factors, management believes that entity XYZ 

is a going concern. 

 

A3.  On the basis of the guidance regarding offsetting, net presentation in the given case would not be 

appropriate, as it would not reflect substance of the transaction and would detract from the ability of 

users to understand the transaction. Accordingly, the commission received by the company as an 

agent is the gross revenue of the company. The amount of commission paid by it to the sub-agent 

should be considered as an expense and should not be offset against commission earned by it. 

 

A4.  An entity may present comparative information in addition to minimum comparative financial 

statements required by Ind ASs, as long as that information is prepared in accordance with Ind ASs. 

When an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of 

items in its financial statements or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements, it shall 

present, as a minimum, 3 balance sheets, 2 of each of other statements, and related notes. An 

additional statement of financial position is not required, because the acquisition had no impact on 

the entity’s financial position at 1st April, 20X0. 
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IND AS 2 

 A1. Inventories are assets 

a. held for sale in the ordinary course of business; 

b. in the process of production for such sale; or 

c. in form of materials/supplies to be consumed in production process / in rendering of services  

Inventories also encompass finished goods produced, or WIP being produced, by entity & include 

materials and supplies awaiting use in production process. 

Packing Material: While the primary packing material may be included within the scope of the 

term ‘materials and supplies awaiting use in the production process’ but the secondary packing 

material cannot be so included, as these are selling costs which are required to be excluded as per 

Ind AS 2. For this purpose, the primary packing material is one which is essential to bring an item 

of inventory to its saleable condition, for example, bottles, cans etc.,  in case of food and beverages 

industry. Other packing material required for transporting and forwarding the material will 

normally be in the nature of secondary packing material. 

Publicity material: Even publicity material is also basically used to promote sales and not incurred 

to bring the inventory at present location and in present condition hence they belong to seling 

expense and are excluded from the valuation of inventory. 

A2.  

Particulars Treatment Reason 

Trade discounts on purchase Included  Basic purchase price 

should be net of 

Trade Discount 

Handling costs relating to imports Included Cost incurred to bring 

the material at present 

location and present 

condition 

Import duties 

Costs of purchases (based on supplier’s invoices) 

Freight expense 

Insurance of purchases 

Brokerage commission paid to indenting agents 
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Salaries of accounting department Excluded Selling and after sale 

expenses Sales commission paid to sales agents 

After sales warranty costs 

 

A3. Fixed production overheads are allocated based on normal capacity or actual capacity whichever is 

higher. The amount of fixed overhead allocated to each unit of production is not increased as a 

consequence of low production or idle plant and unallocated overheads are recognised as an 

expense in the period of incurrence. This ensures that the value of an asset in not increased because 

of inefficiency & that they are charged to P&L in year in which they are incurred. 

Particulars       8000 units   10000 Units 

Actual Production Overheads     `100000  `100000 

No Of units (Actual Production or Normal  

production which ever is higher)    10000   12000 

.’. Rate per unit        `10    `8.33 

.’. Inventory Cost       `80000  `100000 

                 (8000 U * `10)     (12000U * `8.33) 

Under absorption debited to P&L       `20000          -  

 

A4. Particulars           

 Basic purchase price (16000 Kgs * (160-10))   `2400000  

 Freight         `140160 

 Total Cost        `2540160 

 Expected Qty to be received (16000 Kgs – 2%)   15680 Kgs 

 .’. Rate per Kg           `162 

  

 Valuation of Inventory  

 Particulars    Kgs  Rate  Value  Treatment 

Abnormal Loss(15680-15500) 180  162  29160  Debited to P&L 
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 Consumed    13600  162  2203200  COGS 

 Closing Stock    1900  162  307800  Asset 

A5. Retail inventory method is often used in the retail industry for measuring inventories of large 

numbers of rapidly changing items with similar margins for which it is impracticable to use other 

costing methods. The cost of the inventory is determined by reducing the sales value of the 

inventory by the appropriate percentage gross margin.  

 (Cost of inventory = Sales value – Appropriate gross margin). The retail method can be used 

for measuring inventories of the beauty products. The cost of the inventory is determined by taking 

the selling price of the cosmetics and reducing it by the gross margin of 65% to arrive at the cost. 

 Standard costs methods take into account normal levels of materials and supplies, labour, 

efficiency and capacity utilisation. They are regularly reviewed and, if necessary, revised in the 

light of current conditions. The, handbags can be measured using standard cost especially if the 

results approximate cost. Given that The company has the information reliably on hand in relation 

to direct materials, direct labour, direct expenses and overheads, it would be the best method to use 

to arrive at the cost of inventories. 

 Techniques for the measurement of the cost of inventories, such as the standard cost method or the 

retail method, may be used for convenience if the results approximate cost. 

 

 

A6. FIFO: 350 Units * 14 = `4900  Cost of sales = `12250 – `5500 = `6750 

  50 units * 12   =  `600 

  Total        `5500 

  

 WAM:  

Cost per units = `12250/1000  = `12.25 Cost of sales = `12250 – `4900 = `7350 

 Value of inventory= 400* `12.25  = `4900   
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A7. Let the cost pf material be       `x 

 Less: Down Payment       `0.25 x 

 .’. Cost to be paid in installment (without interest)   `0.75 x 

 

 `0.75 x = EMI * sum of present value factors for 5 years @6% 

 `0.75 x = EMI * 4.212 

 .’.EMI = `0.75 x /4.212 = `0.178 x 

 Down payment + All installment = Total Payment 

 `0.25 x + (5 * `0.178 x)  = `4000000 

 .’.  x    = `3507808 

 .’. Interest Cost = `4000000 – `3507808 = `492192 

  

A8. As per Ind AS 2 the cost of inventories, other than the items of inventories which are not ordinarily 

interchangeable shall be assigned by using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) or weighted average cost 

formula. An entity shall use the same cost formula for all inventories having similar nature and use 

to it. In this case, since the inventories held at different geographical location are of similar nature 

and use to the entity, different cost formula cannot be used for inventory valuation purposes. 

 

 

A9. Calculation of NRV for By Product 

 Particulars                     ` 

 Selling price     (2000 units * 20)    40000 

 Less: Processing charges       (8000) 

 Less: Packing charges        (2000) 

 .’. NRV         30000  
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 Calculation of Net Joint Cost 

 Particulars         ` 

 Raw material         1,50,000 

Wages          90,000 

Fixed overhead        65,000  

Variable overhead        50,000 

Less: NRV of by-product BP    30,000  

 Sale value of scrap       5,000   (35,000) 

 Net Joint Cost         320000 

  

 Allocation of Net Joint Cost 

  Particulars      MP1   MP2 

 Output in units (a)     5,000   4,000 

Sales price per unit (b)    `60   `50 

Sales value (a x b)     `3,00,000  `2,00,000 

Ratio of allocation     3   2 

Joint cost allocated in the ratio of 3:2 (c)  `1,92,000  `1,28,000 

Cost per unit [c/a]     `38.4   `32 

 

Valuation of Inventory 

Closing stock in units     250 units  100 units 

Cost per unit      38.4   32 

Value of closing stock     `9,600   `3,200 

 

A10. Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down 

below cost (means they are maintained at cost) if the finished products in which they will be 

incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a decline in the price of 

materials indicates that the cost of the finished products exceeds NRV, the materials are written 
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down to NRV. In such circumstances, the replacement cost of the materials may be the best 

available measure of their net realisable value. Accordingly in the given case inventory will be 

valued at ` 80000 (10000 kgs * 80 per kg)  

 

A11. From the fact given in the question it is obvious that Sun Ltd. is a manufacturer of solar power 

panel. As per Ind AS 2 ‘Inventories’, inventories are assets (a) held for sale in the ordinary course 

of business; (b) in the process of production for such sale; or (c) in the form of materials or supplies 

to be consumed in the production process or in the rendering of services. Therefore, solar power 

panel held in its stock will be considered as its inventory. Further, as per the standard, inventory at 

the end of the year are to be valued at lower of cost or NRV. 

 As the customer has postponed the delivery schedule due to liquidity crunch the entire cost incurred 

for solar power panel which were to be supplied has been shown in Inventory. The solar power 

panel are in the possession of the Company which can be sold in the market. Hence company 

should value such inventory as  per principle laid down in Ind  AS 2 i.e. lower  of Cost or NRV. 

Though, the goods were produced as per specifications of buyer the Company should determine the 

NRV of these goods in the market and value the goods accordingly. Change in value of such solar 

power panel should be provided for in the books. In the absence of the NRV of WIP and Finished 

product given in the question, assuming that cost is lower, the company shall value its inventory as 

per Ind AS 2 for ` 140 lakhs [i.e solar power panel (WIP)  ` 85 lakhs + solar power panel (finished 

products) ` 55 lakhs]. 

Alternatively, if it is assumed that there is no buyer for such fabricated solar power panel, then the 

NRV will be Nil. In such a case, full value of FG and WIP will be provided for in books. 

 As regards Sundry Debtors balance, since the Company has filed a petition for winding up against 

the customer in 20X2-20X3, it is probable that amount is not recoverable from the party. Hence, the 

provision for doubtful debts for ` 65 lakhs shall be made in the books against the debtor’s amount. 
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 IND AS 7 

A1.  Sr. No. Name of the Security Decision 

1.  Government Bonds    Include 

1. Fixed deposit with SBI   Not to be considered – long term 

2. Fixed deposit with HDFC   Exclude as original maturity is not less than 90 days 

from the date of acquisition 

3. Redeemable Preference shares in ABC Ltd. Include as due within 90 days from date of acquisition 

4. Cash balances at various banks  Include 

5. Cash balances at various banks  Include 

6. Cash balances at various banks  Include 

7. Bank overdraft of SBI Fort branch  Include 

8. Treasury Bills     Include 

 

A2.  

No. Nature of transaction paid   Operating / Investing / Not to be considered 

1 Interest received on loans   Operating – Main revenue generating activity 

2 Interest paid on Deposits   Operating – Main expenses of operations 

3 Deposits accepted    Operating – in case of financial institutes 

4 Loans given to customers   Operating – in case of financial institutes 

5 Loans repaid by the customers  Operating – in case of financial institutes 

6 Deposits repaid    Operating – in case of financial institutes 

7 Commission received    Operating – Main revenue generating activity 

8 Lease rentals paid for various branches Operating – Main expenses of operations 

9 Service tax paid    Operating – Main expenses of operations 

10 Furniture for new branches   Investing – Assets purchased 

11 Implementation of upgraded  

banking software    Investing – Purchased for long term purpose 

12 Purchase of shares in 100% subsidiary  
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for opening a branch in Abu Dhabi  Investing – strategic investment 

13 New cars purchased from Honda dealer,  

in exchange of old cars   Investing 

14 Provident fund paid for the employees Operating 

15 Issued employee stock options   Not to be considered. No cash flow 

 

A3.  

Sr. No. Nature of transaction     Operating / Investing/  

Financing /Not to be considered 

1 Issued preference shares     Financing 

2 Purchased the shares of 100% subsidiary company  Investing 

3 Dividend received from shares of subsidiaries  Investing 

4 Dividend received from other companies   Investing 

5 Bonus shares issued      No cash flow 

 6 Purchased license for manufacturing of special drugs Investing 

7 Royalty received from the goods patented by the company Operating 

8 Rent received from the let out building  

(letting out is not main business)    Investing 

9 Interest received from the advances given   Operating 

10 Dividend paid       Financing 

11 Interest paid on security deposits    Financing 

12 Purchased goodwill      Investing 

13 Acquired the assets of a company by issue  

of equity shares (not parting any cash)  Not to be considered 

14 Interim dividends paid     Financing 

15 Dissolved the 100% subsidiary and received  

the amount in final settlement     Investing 
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A4. Cash flows arising from transactions in foreign currency shall be recorded in an entity’s functional 

currency by applying the exchange rate at date of cash flow. Cash flows of a foreign subsidiary 

shall be translated at exchange rates on dates of cash flows. Unrealised gains & losses arising from 

changes in foreign currency exchange rates are not cash flows. However, the effect of exchange rate 

changes on CCE held or due in a foreign currency is reported in statement of cash flows in order to 

reconcile CCE at the beginning and end of the period. This amount is presented separately from 

cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities and includes the differences, if any, 

had those cash flows been reported at end of period exchange rates. 

Particulars        Rs.  

 Profit before Tax       100 

 Less unrealised exchange gain     (100)  

Net cash from all Activities      0 

 Add: opening balance       4500 

 .’. CCE closing balance      4500 

 

 Reconciliation of CCE  

 CCE as per statement of cash flow     4500 

 Add: unrealised exchange gain     100 

 CCE as per balance sheet      4600 

 

A5. The profit and loss account was credited by ` 1,00,000 (US$ 2000 × ` 50) towards interest income. 

It was credited by the exchange difference of US$ 100,000 × (` 50 - `45) that is, ` 500,000. In 

preparing the cash flow statement, ` 500,000, the exchange difference, should be deducted from the 

‘net profit before taxes, and extraordinary item’. However, in order to reconcile the opening balance 

of the cash and cash equivalents with its closing balance, the exchange difference ` 500,000, should 

be added to the opening balance in note to cash flow statement. Cash flows arising from 

transactions in a foreign currency shall be recorded in Z Ltd.’s functional currency by applying to 
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the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign 

currency at the date of the cash flow. 

 

A6. Interest Income will be treated as income over the period of bond in the income statement. 

However, there will be no cash flow in these years because no cash has been received. On maturity, 

receipt of ` 10,00,000 will be classified as investment activity with a bifurcation of interest income 

& money received on redemption of bond. 

 

A7.  Cash flows arising from taxes on income shall be separately disclosed and shall be classified as 

cash flows from operating activities unless they can be specifically identified with financing and 

investing activities. In the case of X Limited, the tax amount of ` 30,000 is specifically related with 

investing activities. Hence ` 5,00,000 to be shown under operating activities and ` 30,000 to be 

shown under investing activities. 

 

A8. Investing and financing transactions that do not require the use of  cash and cash equivalents shall 

be excluded from a statement of cash flows. X Limited should classify cash payment of `2,00,000 

under investing activities. The non-cash transactions – liabilities and asset should be disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements. 

  

Answer to question 9 and 10 are in the video lecture itself. 
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IND AS 8 
A1. Paragraph 16(a) of Ind AS 8 provides that the application of an accounting policy for transactions, 

other events or conditions that differ in substance from those previously occurring are not changes 

in accounting policies. 

A building is an item of property, plant and equipment (PPE) or an investment property for an 

entity depends on the purpose for which it is held by the entity. It is thus possible that due to a 

change in the purpose for which it is held, a building that was previously classified as an item of 

property, plant and equipment may warrant reclassification as an investment property, or vice versa. 

Whether a building is in the nature of PPE or investment property is determined by applying the 

definitions of these terms from the perspective of that entity. Thus, the classification of a building 

as an item of property, plant and equipment or as an investment property is not a matter of an 

accounting policy choice. Accordingly, a change in classification of a building from property, plant 

and equipment to investment property due to change in the purpose for which it is held by the entity 

is not a change in an accounting policy. 

 

A2.  As per Ind AS 21, ‘functional currency’ is the currency of the primary economic environment in 

which the entity operates. Ind AS 21 list factors to be considered by an entity in determining its 

functional currency.It is recognised that there may be cases where the functional currency is not 

obvious.In such cases, Ind AS 21 requires the management to use its judgement to determine the 

functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying 

transactions, events and conditions. Further Ind AS 21 specifically notes that an entity’s functional 

currency reflects the underlying transactions, events and conditions that are relevant to it. 

Accordingly, once determined, the functional currency is not changed unless there is a change in 

those underlying transactions, events and conditions. Thus, functional currency of an entity is not a 

matter of an accounting policy choice. In view of the above, a change in functional currency of an 

entity does not represent a change in accounting policy and Ind AS 8, therefore, does not apply to 

such a change.Ind AS 21 requires that when there is a change in an entity’s functional currency, the 
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entity shall apply the translation procedures applicable to the new functional currency prospectively 

from the date of the change. 

 

A3. In the absence of an Ind AS that specifically applies to a transaction, other event or condition, 

management may apply an accounting policy from the most recent pronouncements of International 

Accounting Standards Board and in absence thereof those of the other standard- setting bodies that 

use a similar conceptual framework to develop accounting standards. If, following an amendment 

of such a pronouncement, the entity chooses to change an accounting policy, that change is 

accounted for and disclosed as a voluntary change in accounting policy. As such a change is a 

voluntary change in accounting policy, it can be made only if it results in information that is 

reliable and more relevant (and does not conflict with the sources in Ind AS 8). 

 

A4. A change from revaluation model to cost model for a class of PPE can be made only if it meets the 

condition specified in Ind AS 8 paragraph 14(b) i.e. the change results in the financial statements 

providing reliable and more relevant information to the users of financial statements. Where the 

change in accounting policy from revaluation model to cost model is considered permissible in 

accordance with Ind AS 8, it shall be accounted for retrospectively, in accordance with Ind AS 8. 

 

A5. When an entity has not applied a new Ind AS that has been issued but is not yet effective, the entity 

shall disclose this fact and reasonably estimable information relevant to assessing the possible 

impact that application of the new Ind AS will have on the entity’s financial statements in the 

period of initial application. For this an entity considers disclosing: 

1. the title of the new Ind AS; 

2. the nature of the impending change or changes in accounting policy; 

3. the date by which application of the Ind AS is required; 

 4. the date as at which it plans to apply the Ind AS initially 

 5. either: 
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i. a discussion of the impact that initial application of the Ind AS is expected to have on the entity’s 

financial statements; or 

ii. if that impact is not known or reasonably estimable, a statement to that effect. 

 

A6.  As per Ind AS 8, accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and 

practices applied by an entity in preparing and presenting financial statements.Further, paragraph 

36(a) of Ind AS 2, ‘Inventories’, specifically requires disclosure of ‘cost formula used’ as a part of 

disclosure of accounting policies adopted in measurement of inventories. Accordingly, a change in 

cost formula is a change in accounting policy. 

 

A7. As per Ind AS 8, errors can arise in respect of the recognition, measurement, presentation or 

disclosure of elements of financial statements. Financial statements do not comply with Ind AS if 

they contain either material errors or immaterial errors made intentionally to achieve a particular 

presentation of an entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows.  

In accordance with the above, the reclassification of liabilities from non-current to current would be 

considered as correction of an error under Ind AS 8. Accordingly, in the financial statements for the 

year ended 31st March, 20X2, the comparative amounts as at 31st March, 20X1 would be restated 

to reflect the correct classification. Further Ind AS 1 requires an entity to present a third balance 

sheet as at the beginning of the preceding period for retrospective restatement of items in its 

financial statements. Accordingly, the entity should present a third balance sheet as at the beginning 

of the preceding period, i.e., as at 1st April, 20X0 in addition to the comparatives for the financial 

year 20X0-X1. 

 

A8. Similar to Answer 7 

 

A9. Intro as per answer 7: In the given case, expenses for the year ended 31
st
 March, 20X1 and 

liabilities as at 31st March, 20X1 were understated because of non-recognition of bonus expense 

and related provision. Expenses for the year ended 31st March, 20X2, on the other hand, were 
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overstated to the same extent because ofrecognition of aforesaid bonus asexpense for the year.To 

correct above errors in annual financial statements for year ended31st March, 20X3, entity should: 

(a) restate the comparative amounts (i.e., those for the year ended 31st March, 20X2) in the statement 

of profit and loss; and 

(b) present a third balance sheet as atthe beginning ofthe precedingperiod (i.e., asat 1st April, 20X1) 

wherein it should recognise the provision for bonus and restate the retained earnings. 

 

A10. Ind AS 34, Interim Financial Statements, states that“While judgement is always required in 

assessing materiality, this standard bases the recognition and disclosure decision on data for the 

interim period by itself for reasons of understandability of the interim figures. Thus, for example, 

unusual items, changes in accounting policies or estimates, and errors are recognised and disclosed 

on the basis of materiality in relation to interim period data to avoid misleading inferences that 

might result from nondisclosure. The overriding goal is to ensure that an interim financial report 

includes all information that is relevant to understanding an entity’s financial position and 

performance during the interim period.” 

As per the above, while materiality judgements always involve a degree of subjectivity, the 

overriding goal is to ensure that an interim financial report includes all the information that is 

relevant to an understanding of the financial position and performance of theentityduring the 

interim period. It is therefore not appropriate to base quantitative assessments of materiality on 

projected annual figures when evaluating errors in interim financial statements. 

Accordingly, the management is required to correct the error in the interim financial statements 

since it is assessed to be material in relation to interim period data. 

 

A11. Same as Q7. 
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IND AS 10 

 A1. As per Ind AS 10 the date of approval for issue of financial statements is the date on 

which the financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors in case of a 

company, and, by the corresponding approving authority in case of any other entity. 

Accordingly, in the instant case, the date of approval is the date on which the 

financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors of the company, i.e., 

June 19, 20X2. 

 

A2. Date of approval is the date on which the financial statements are approved by the 

Board of Directors in case of a company, and by the corresponding approving 

authority in case of any other entity for issue. In the given case, there are two dates of 

approval by Board of Directors. The financial statements were reopened for further 

adjustments subsequent to initial approval. The date of approval should be taken as 

the date on which financial statements are finally approved by the Board of Directors. 

Therefore, in the given case, the date of approval for issue as per Ind AS 10 should 

be considered as June 30, 20X2. 

 

A3. As per IND AS 34 for interim reporting discreet approach is to be followed as per 

which what ever is allowed or disallowed at the year end is allowed at the quarter 

end. Accordingly, if an event is will be classified as adjusting event at the year end as 

per IND AS 10 then the same should be treated as adjusting events at the quarter 

event. 

 Further, what is reporting period has not been dealt with in Ind AS 10. Absence of 

any specific guidance regarding reporting period implies that any term for which 

reporting is done by preparing financial statements is the reporting period for the 

purpose of Ind AS 10. Accordingly, financial reporting done for interim period by 

preparing either complete set of financial statements or by preparing condensed 

financial statements will be treated as reporting period for the purpose of Ind AS 10.  
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As per above discussion events occurring between July 1, 20X1& July 15, 20X1 that 

provide evidence of conditions that existed at end of interim reporting period should 

be adjusted in the interim financial report ending June 30, 20X1. 

 

A4.   In case of company: The accounts will be said as approved when board of directors 

approve the statements. 

Any other entity: The accounts will be said as approved when Corresponding 

approving authority approves the statements. The standard does not mention 

specifically what will constitute the approving authority in case of other entity. But 

from the word “Corresponding” one can construe that it is the body which is 

authorised to manage the entity on behalf of all members. 

In some cases, an entity is required to submit its financial statements to its 

shareholders or to a supervisory board (made up solely of non-executives) for 

approval, after the financial statements have been approved by the Board for issue. In 

such cases, the financial statements are approved for issue on the date of approval by 

the Board, not the date when shareholders or executory committee approve the FS. 

Accordingly, The financial statements  are approved for issue on 18th May, 20X2 

(date of management approval for issue to the supervisory board). 

 

A5.  As per IND AS 10 there are two types of events can be identified those that provide 

evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting 

events after the reporting period); and those that are indicative of conditions that 

arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events after the reporting period). 

Court order received after the reporting period provides the evidence of the  liability 

existing at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the event will be considered as 

an adjusting event and, accordingly, the amounts will be adjusted in financial 

statements for 20X1-20X2. 
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A6.  If an entity declares dividends to holders of equity instruments (as defined in Ind AS 

32, Financial Instruments: Presentation) after the reporting period, the entity shall not 

recognise those dividends as a liability at the end of the reporting period because no 

obligation exists at that time. They are disclosed in the notes in accordance with Ind 

AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. 

The dividend is declared in the year 20X2-20X3. Therefore, the obligation towards  

dividend did  not exist at the end date of reporting period i.e., on 31st March, 20X2. 

Therefore, it will be  accounted for in the year 20X2-20X3 and not in 20X1-20X2, 

even if financial statements for 20X1- 20X2 were approved after the declaration of  

dividend.  It will, however, be disclosed in the notes  in the financial statements for 

the year 20X1-20X2 in accordance with Ind AS 1. 

 

A7.  As per IND AS 10 there are two types of events can be identified those that provide 

evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting 

events after the reporting period); and those that are indicative of conditions that 

arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events after the reporting period). As 

per the provisions of the contract, the cost of  installation and training of new 

machine is  an integral part of the cost of asset purchased. Therefore, even if the 

details are available after reporting period, they provide proof about the 

circumstances that existed at the end of reporting period. Therefore, the cost of 

installation and training will be considered for capitalisation in the year 20X1-20X2. 

 

A8. As per IND AS 10 where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan 

arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the 

liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the agreement by lender 

before the approval of the financial statements for issue, to not demand payment as a 

consequence of the breach, shall be considered as an adjusting event. Accordingly in 
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the given case Debenture will be disclosed as Non- current liability and not current 

liability. 

  

A9. As per IND AS 10 there are two types of events can be identified those that provide 

evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting 

events after the reporting period); and those that are indicative of conditions that 

arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events after the reporting period). In 

the given case government ruling in April is absolutely a new event and hence should 

be considered as non adjusting event and cars must be valued at `400000 each. 

However if the law was in draft stage during the yearend and was expected to be 

enacted then the passing of law given evidence about the conditions existing at the 

reporting date and hence and adjusting even. Accordingly the cars must be valued at 

` 300000 each.    

 

A10.  Similar to Ans 7. 

 

A11. With regard to going concern basis to be followed for preparation of financial  

statements, Ind AS 10 states that An entity shall not prepare its financial statements 

on a going concern basis if management determines after the reporting period either 

that it intends to liquidate the entity or to cease trading, or that it has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

Deterioration in operating results and financial position after the reporting period 

may indicate a need to consider whether the going concern assumption is still 

appropriate. If the going concern assumption is no longer appropriate, the effect is so 

pervasive that this Standard requires a fundamental change in the basis of accounting, 

rather than an adjustment to the amounts recognised within the original basis of 

accounting. 
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In accordance with the above, an entity needs to change the basis of accounting if the 

effect of deterioration in operating results and financial position is so pervasive that 

management determines after the reporting period either that it intends to liquidate 

the entity or to cease trading, or that it has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

In the instant case, since contract is expiring on 31st December 20X5 and it is 

confirmed on 23rd April, 20X5, i.e., after the end of the reporting period and before 

the approval of the financial statements, that no further contact is secured, implies 

that the entity’s operations are expected to come to an end. Accordingly, if entity’s 

operations are expected to come to an end, the entity needs to make a judgement as to 

whether it has any realistic possibility to  continue or  not. In case, the entity 

determines that it has no realistic alternative of continuing the business, preparation 

of financial statements for 20X4-X5 and thereafter on going concern basis may not 

be appropriate. 
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IND AS 16 

A1. Only those costs which are directly attributable to bringing the asset into working condition for its 

intended use should be included. Administration and general costs cannot be included. Cost 

ofabnormal amount of wasted material/ labour or other resources is not included as per Ind AS 16. 

Here, the cost of spoilt materials and faulty designs are assumed to be abnormal costs. Also it is 

assumed that the wastages and labor charges incurred are abnormal in nature. Hence, same are also 

not included in the cost of PPE. 

Calculation of cost of Land & Building 

Purchase price of land         30,00,000 

Stamp duty & legal fee          2,00,000 

Architect fee            2,00,000 

Site preparation              50,000 

Material (10,00,000 – 2,50,000)         7,50,000 

Direct labour cost (4,00,000 – 22,000)        3,78,000 

          45,78,000 

Interest (40,00,000 * 8%*8.5/12)        2,26,667 

Total Cost          48,04,667 

OR 

If Land and Building are treated as separate asset 

Cost of land         30,00,000 

Cost of Building excl. interest (4578000 – 30,00,000)   15,78,000 

 Interest (10,00,000 * 8% * 8.5/12)           56,667   

Total cost of Building        16,34,667 

 

A2. Calculation of Cost of Land & Building  

 Particulars          ` 

Purchase of land   100,00,000 Direct cost of acquisition  

Preparation and levelling      300,000 A direct cost of constructing the factory 
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 Materials    60,80,000 A direct cost of constructing the factory 

 Employment costs   14,00,000 A direct cost of constructing for a 7m period 

Direct overhead costs     7,00,000 A direct cost of constructing for a 7m period 

Allocated overhead costs  Nil  Not a direct cost of construction 

 Income from use as a car park Nil  Not essential to construction so debited in P&L 

 Relocation costs   Nil  Not a direct cost of construction 

 Opening ceremony   Nil  Not a direct cost of construction 

Provision for Demolition    920,000 Recognise as part of the cost as per IND AS 16 

(2,00,00,000 * 0.046) 

           1,94,00,000 

Finance costs    6,12,500 Capitalise the interest cost incurred in a 7m 

(1,75,00,000 * 6% * 7/12) 

Investment income            (1,00,000) Offset against amount capitalised INDAS 23 

Total Cost          1,99,12,500 

 

A3. On 1st April, 20X1 

Property, Plant and Equipment (W.N. 1) Dr.   95,00,000 

To Bank A/c         33,33,333 

To Accounts Payable         61,66,667 

(Initial recognition of property) 

 

31st March, 20X2  31st March, 20X2  

Interest Expense (W.N. 2) Dr.  3,30,533    1,69,466 

Accounts payable (W.N. 2) Dr.  30,02,800   31,63,867 

To Bank A/c     33,33,333   33,33,333 
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Amortisation Schedule 

Year  Opening Bal. +Interest Recognised @5.36% -Installment =  Closing Bal 

0  95,00,000  0    33,33,333 61,66,667 

1  61,66,667  3,30,533   33,33,333 31,63,867 

2  31,63,867  1,69,466   33,33,333        0 

 

A4.  Private Jet  (15,000 + 3000)    Dr. 18,000  

To Land and Building         10,000 

To Cash          3,000 

 To Profit on exchange of assets       5,000 

 

A5. Original Cost        1,00,000 

 Less: Depreciation for 6 years        60,000 

 Carrying Amount          40,000 

 Add Cost of new engine         45,000 

 Less Carrying amount of replaced engine (35,259 – 21,155)    (14,104)   

(45,000 * 0.784) – depreciation of 6 years   

Revised Cost            70,896 

 

A6. Method 1: 

Asset Cost     Dr. 20,000 

To Revaluation reserve     20,000 

The net result is that the asset has a carrying amount of ` 65,000 (100,000 – 55,000 + 20,000). 

Method 2:  

Particulars    Cost   Increase  Revalued 

Original Cost    1,00,000  44,444   1,44,444 

Acc. Depreciation   55,000    24,444  79,444 

WDV     45,000    20,000(44.44%)  65,000 
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A8. Venus's Ltd. management can apply the revaluation model only to the office buildings.The office 

buildings can be clearly distinguished from the industrial buildings in terms of their function, their 

nature and their general location.Ind AS 16 permits assets to be revalued on a class-by-class 

basis.The different characteristics of the buildings enable them to be classified as different PPE 

classes. The different measurement models can therefore be applied to these classes for subsequent 

measurement. All properties within the class of office buildings must therefore be carried at 

revalued amount. Separate disclosure ofthetwoclasses must be given inaccordance with Ind AS 16. 

 

A9. Original Cost        9,00,000 

 Less: Depreciation for 2 years     1,80,000 

 Carrying Amount       7,20,000 

 Revalued Carrying amount      9,60,000 

 Revaluation Reserve       2,40,000 

 

 Actual depreciation on revalued amount (9,60,000 / 8)  1,20,000 

 Depreciation on original Cost   (9,00,000/ 10)     90,000 

 Amount transferred from Revaluation Reserve to Retained Earnings   30,000 

 OR  (240,000 / 8)  

  

A10. Original Cost        50,00,000 

 Less: Depreciation for Y1     -5,00,000 

 WDV        45,00,000 

 Less: Depreciation for Y2     -4,50,000 

 WDV        40,50,000 

 Less: Depreciation for Y3     -4,05,000 

 WDV        36,45,000 

 Depreciation from 4 to 11 (36,45,000 / 8)      4,55,625  
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A11. On  31st  March,  2027,  the  plant  is  10  years  old.  Accumulated  depreciation  is  `  30,000 

(`120,000 x 10 / 40 years). Due to unwinding of discount @ 5% over the 10 years, the amount of 

decommissioning liability has increased from ` 10,000 to ` 16,300 (approx.). 

On 31st March, 2027, the discount rate has not changed.  However, the entity estimates that,  as a 

result of technological advances, the net present value of the decommissioning liability  has 

decreased by ` 8,000. Accordingly, the entity adjusts the decommissioning liability from 

` 16,300 to ` 8,300. On this date, the entity passes the following journal entry to reflect the change: 

Provision for decommissioning liability Dr. 8,000 

To Asset      8,000 

 Following this adjustment, the carrying amount of the asset is ` 82,000 (` 1,20,000 – ` 8,000 

– ` 30,000), which will be depreciated over the remaining 30 years of the asset’s life giving a 

depreciation expense for the next year of ` 2,733 (` 82,000 / 30). The next year’s finance cost for 

unwinding of discount will be ` 415 (` 8,300 × 5 per cent).    
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IND AS 20 

A1. Government Grants are assistant by government in form of transfer of resources to an entity in 

return of post is future complains of certain conditions, relating to operating activities of an entity. 

As per Ind AS 20 government grant should be credited to Profit & Loss account either immediately 

or deferred over the period the expenses are incurred for satisfying the conditions attaching the 

grant or in case of depreciable asset over the useful life of asset in the ratio of depreciation. 

 In the given case as the grant are not having any conditions the entire grant should be credited to 

Profit & Loss account immediately. 

 

A2. Government Grants are assistant by government in form of transfer of resources to an entity in 

return of post is future complains of certain conditions, relating to operating activities of an entity. 

As per Ind AS 20 government grant should be credited to Profit & Loss account either immediately 

or deferred over the period the expenses are incurred for satisfying the conditions attaching the 

grant or in case of depreciable asset over the useful life of asset in the ratio of depreciation.  

 In the given case the A ltd is given a grant which is subject to the satisfaction of conditions. Hence 

the grant should be credited to deferred government grant account and written off over period of 

two years during which the expenses are incurred for R&D on the vaccine. Further the amount to be 

written off each year should be in the ratio ofexpenses incurred over the two years for R&D, so that 

the matching concept can be followed. 

 

A3. Asper IND AS 20, government grant including non-monetary grants, shall not be recognised until 

there is reasonable certainty that 

a.  Entity will comply with the conditions attaching them & 

b.  Grant will be received. 

Receipt of grant does not itself provide conclusive evidence that the conditions attaching to the 

grant, have been or will be fulfilled. 

In the given case A ltd should recognise the receipt as grant only if there is reasonable certainty that 

the conditions attaching the grant will be fulfilled by it. If the that is the case then the receipt should 
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be accounted as liability until the reasonable certainty is not established. Further the grant should be 

credited to deferred government grant account and written off over period of three years during 

which the expenses are incurred for rehabilitation. Further the amount to be written off each year 

should be in the ratio of expenses incurred over the three years for rehabilitation, so that the 

matching concept can be followed. 

 

A4. The benefit of government Loan below Market rate of Interest is treated as government grant. The 

Loan should be recognised & measured in accordance with IND AS – 109 – Financial instrument 

and benefit should be measured as difference between initial carrying amount of Loan as per IND 

AS 109 and proceeds received. 

 Total proceeds of loan      50,00,000 

 Liability component as per IND AS 109   (37,38,328) 

 .’. Grant         12,61,672 

 Calculation of liability component  

 Year  Cash Flow     PV @ 12% 

 1-5  50,00,000 * 5% = 2,50,000   9,01,194 

 5  50,00,000     28,37,134 

   Total      37,38,328 

 Bank Account   Dr.    50,00,000 

To Deferred Income    12,61,672  

   To Loan Account    37,38,328 

Assuming (a), the loan is an immediate relief measure to rescue theenterprise. ` 12,61,672 will be 

recognised in profit or loss immediately. 

Assuming (b), the loan is a subsidy for staff training expenses, incurred equally, for a period of 4 

years. ` 12,61,672 will be recognised in profit or loss over a period of 4 years. 

Assuming (c), the loan is to finance adepreciable asset. ` 12,61,672 will berecognised in profit or 

loss on the same basis as depreciation. 
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A5. Non-monetary government grants represent asset as grant instead of money. These assets may be 

received free of cost or at concessional rate. Such grants and assets are to be recognized at their fair 

values. Alternatively, both asset and grant at a nominal amount. DGG will be written off in P&L in 

the ratio of depreciation / expenses incurred for satisfying the related conditions. 

A limited will recognise the land at fair value of ` 5,00,000 and ` 450,000 [(` 100,000 – ` 10,000) 

x 5)] as government grant. This government grant should be presented in the balance sheet by 

settingup the grant as deferred income. Alternatively, the land may be recognised by A Ltd. at 

nominal value of ` 50,000 (` 10,000 x 5). 

 

A6. Government grants related to assets including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall be presented 

in the balance sheet either  

a.  by setting up the grant as deferred income (DGG) that is recognised in P&L on a systematic basis 

over the useful life of the asset. or 

b. by deducting grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in P&L over the 

life of a depreciable asset as a reduced depreciation expense. 

A Limited will set up ` 50,00,000 as deferred income and will credit ` 5,00,000 equally to its 

statement of profit and loss over next 10 years. Alternatively, A Ltd. may deduct ` 50,00,000 from 

the cost of solar panel of ` 1,00,00,000. 

 

A7. Government Grants are assistant by government in form of transfer of resources to an entity in 

return of post is future complains of certain conditions, relating to operating activities of an entity. 

As per Ind AS 20 government grant should be credited to Profit & Loss account either immediately 

or deferred over the period the expenses are incurred for satisfying the conditions attaching the 

grant or in case of depreciable asset over the useful life of asset in the ratio of depreciation. 

             ` in 000 

 Year  Particulars    Estimated expenses to be incurred   GG 

1 Job creation     20      

Non productive cost    12 
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Annual Salary  (30*4m/12m) 10 

Total      42     27.63 

2 Annual Salary     30     19.74 

3 Annual Salary     30     19.74 

4 Annual Salary     30     19.74 

5 Annual Salary (30 * 8m/12m)  20     13.15 

Total       152     100 

A8. Government Grants are assistant by government in form of transfer of resources to an entity in 

return of post is future complains of certain conditions, relating to operating activities of an entity. 

As per Ind AS 20 government grant should be credited to Profit & Loss account either immediately 

or deferred over the period the expenses are incurred for satisfying the conditions attaching the 

grant or in case of depreciable asset over the useful life of asset in the ratio of depreciation. 

 Particulars  Grant  Period of W/off  Year 1  Year 2 

Factory Cost  30,000   40 (30000/40y)      750  750  

New Jobs  10,000   1   10,000  - 

Maintenance  12,000   4      3,000 3,000 

 Total        13,750  3,750 

 

A9. ABC Ltd. should recognise the grants in the following manner: 

●  ` 20 lakhs have been received for immediate start-up of business. This should be recognised in 

Statement of Profit and Loss immediately as there are no conditions attached to the grant. 

●  ` 50 lakhs should be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods which the 

entity recognises as expense the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate 

provided that there is reasonable assurance that ABC Ltd. will comply with the conditions attached to grant. 

●  Land should be recognised at fair value of ` 10 lakhs and government grants should be presented in 

the balance sheet by setting up the grant as deferredincome.Alternatively, deduct the amount of 

grant from the cost of the asset. In the given case, the land is granted at no cost. It will be presented 

in the books at nominal value. 
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●  ` 2 lakhs should be recognised as deferred income and will be transferred to profit and loss over the 

useful life of the asset. In this cases, ` 40,000 [` 2 lakhs/5] should be credited to profit and loss 

each year over period of 5 years. Alternatively, ` 2,00,000 will be deducted from the cost of the 

asset and depreciation will be charged at ` 8,00,000 (` 10,00,000 – ` 2,00,000). 

 

A10. Paragraph 3 of Ind AS 20 states that Government grants are assistance bygovernment inthe form of 

transfers of resources to an entity in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions 

relating to the operating activities of the entity.In accordance with the above, in the given case 

exemption of custom duty under EPCG scheme is a government grant and should 

beaccountedforaspertheprovisionsofInd AS 20.Ind AS 20 defines grant related to assets and grants 

related to income as follows:  “Grants related to asset are government grants whose primary 

condition is that an entity qualifying for them should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-

term assets. Subsidiary conditions may also be attached restricting the type or location of assets or 

the periods during which they are to be acquired or held. Grants related to income are grants other 

than those related to assets.” In given case, based on terms & conditions of scheme, the grant 

received is to compensate import cost of assets subject to an export obligation as prescribed in the 

EPCG Scheme and does not relate to purchase, construction or acquisition of a long term asset. 

Hence it is a grant related to income. 

A11. As the carrying amount of asset after 3 years in ` 1050 it means that the grant has been recorded as 

deferred income and credited in DGG account. Accordingly, 

 Particulars       Plant  DGG 

 Cost        1500  300 

 Depreciation / Write off in 3 years as per SLM  (450)  (90) 

 Carrying Amount      1050  210 

 Allocation of Refund   

 Amount of Refund       300 

 Adjusted against DGG balance     210 

 Balance refunded debited to P&L      90  



AJ Education Next   IND AS 21 

1 

 IND AS 21 

A1.  Intro: Factors that may be considered in determining an appropriate functional currency: 

a.  the currency that mainly influences sales prices for goods & services, this often will be the currency 

in which sales prices are denominated and settled. 

b.  the currency of country whose competitive forces and regulations mainly determine the sales prices 

of its goods and services; and 

c.  the currency that mainly influences labour, material and other costs of providing goods and 

services, often this will be currency in which these costs are denominated and settled. 

 Other factors that may provide supporting evidence are: 

a.  the currency in which funds from financing activities i.e., issuing debt and equity instruments) are 

generated; 

b.  the currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained. 

The functional currency of Future Ltd. is L$ looking at the primary indicators. The facts presented 

indicate that the currency that mainly influences the cost of producing the energy drink is the L$.As 

stated in the fact pattern, pricing of the product in USD is done for convenience and consistency 

purposes; there is no indication that the sales price is influenced by the USD. 

 

A2.  Introduction same as A1. 

Small, although based in India with its cash flows generated in India, is essentially a “pass through 

company” established by its parent. Small is totally reliant on  BigInc. for financing and goods to  

be sold, despite the fact that goods are sold within India and in INR. Therefore, Small is not a self-

containedentityinIndia,ratheranentitythatisdependentonitsparent. 

Due to this dependence of Small on its parent company, it can be said that the primary economic 

environment for Small is that of US and thus, its functional currency should also be USD. 

Hence all the transactions of Small which are denominated in any currency other than USD should 

be recorded in USD at the spot rate and any changes in the exchange rate would result in an 

exchange gain or loss to be taken to the statement of profit or loss. 
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A3. Functional Currency 

1.  Intro same as A1.  

2. Entity measures its assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses in its functional currency. All 

transactions in currencies other than functional currency are foreign currency transactions. In 

determining functional currency, an entity emphasises the currency that determines pricing of 

transactions that it undertakes, rather than focusing on currency in which those transactions are 

denominated. 

3. In practice, the functional currency of a foreign operation that is integral to the group will usually 

be the same as that of the parent. 

4. If an entity is a foreign operation, additional factors set out in Ind AS 21 should be considered to 

determine whether its functional currency is the same as that of the reporting entity of which it is a 

subsidiary, branch, associate or joint venture: 

(a) Whether the activities of foreign operations are carried out as an extension of that reporting entity, 

rather than being carried out with a significant degree of autonomy; 

(b) Whether transactions with the reporting entity are a high or a low proportion of the foreign 

operation’s activities; 

(c) Whether cash flows from the activities of the foreign operations directly affect the cash 

flowsofthereportingentityandarereadilyavailableforremittancetoit. 

 (d) Whether cash flows from the activities of the foreign operation are sufficient to service existing and 

normally expected debt obligation without funds being made available by the reporting entity. 

On the basis of additional factors mentioned in point 3 above, B cannot be said to have functional 

currency same as that of A Ltd. 

Hence primary and secondary indicators should be used for the determination of functional 

currency of B giving priority to primary indicators. The analysis is given below: 

• Its significant revenues and competitive forces are in USD. 

• Its significant portion of cost is incurred in INR. Only 30% costs are in USD. 

• 78% of its finances have been raised in USD. 

• It retains its operating cash flows partially in USD and partially in INR. 
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Keeping these factors in view, USD should be considered as the functional currency of B. 

 

A4. Ind AS 21 gives greater emphasis to the currency of the economy that determines the pricing of 

transactions, as opposed to the currency in which transactions are denominated. 

Sales prices for motor cycles are mainly influenced by the competitive forces and regulations in 

India. The market for motor cycles depends on  the economic situation in India and the company   

is in competition with importers of other motorcycle brands. 

Even though 70% of the revenue of the company is denominated in USD, Indian economic 

conditions are the main factors affecting the prices. This is evidenced by the fact that USD 

denominated sales prices in India are different from USD denominated sales prices for the same 

motor cycles in other countries. Management is able to determine the functional currency because 

the revenue is clearly  influenced by the Indian economic environment and expenses are mixed. 

On the basis of above analysis, INR should be considered as the functional currency of company. 

 

A5. The exchange gain or loss incurred by P on the trading balance should be recognised in profit or 

loss. Even if repayment was  not due for three years (for example) or  even longer, but if  

repayment is still planned, then the gain or loss should be recognised in profit or loss. 

The amount lent by P should be regarded as part of its permanent funding to S. Thus, the exchange 

gain or loss incurred by P on the EURO 500 loan should be recognised in profit or loss in P’s 

separate financial statements, but recognised in other comprehensive income and presented within 

equity in the consolidated financial statements. 

 

A6. P’s gain on disposal in its CFS would be calculated as follows manner:  (` in Lakhs) 

Sale proceeds     1,500 

 Net assets of S     (1,000) 

NCI derecognised    100 

 Foreign currency translation reserve  180 

Gain on disposal    780 
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A7. At year-end, S should restate its accounts payable to EURO 220, recognising a loss of Euro 20 in    

its profit or loss. Thus, in the books of S, the balance payable to P will appear at EURO 220 while   

in the books of P the balance receivable from S will be USD 100. For consolidation purposes, the 

assets and liabilities of S will be translated to USD at the closing rate. 

At the time of consolidation, USD 100 which  will get eliminated against the receivable in the 

books of P but the exchange loss of EURO 20 recorded in the subsidiary’s statement of profit or 

loss has  no equivalent gain in the parent’s financial statements. Therefore, exchange loss of EURO 

20 will remain in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

The reason for this is that the intra-group balance represents a commitment to translate Euro into 

USD and this is similar to holding a foreign currency asset in the books of the parent company. i.e. 

the subsidiary would be required to buy USD to settle the obligation to the parent, so the Group has 

an exposure to foreign currency risk. 

 

A8.  Duplicate…………same as Question 6. 

 

A9. Through the origination of the perpetual debt, A has made a permanent investment in B. The 

interest payments are treated as interest receivable by A and interest payable by B, not as repayment 

of the principal debt. Hence, the fact that the interest payments are perpetual does not mean that 

settlement is planned or likely to occur. The perpetual debt can be considered part of A's net 

investment in B. In accordance with Ind AS 21, the foreign exchange gains and losses should be 

recorded in equity at the consolidated level because settlement of that perpetual debt is neither 

planned nor likely to occur. 

 

A10.  Solution to Q10 is in the video lecture 

 

A11. Accounting treatment in the books of M  Ltd 

M Ltd will recognize sales of Rs. 996 lacs (12 lacs Euro X 83)  

Profit on sale of inventory = 996 lacs – 830 lacs = Rs. 166 lacs.  
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Accounting treatment in the books of G Ltd 

G Ltd will recognize inventory on 1
st
February, 20X1 of Euro 12 lacs which will also be its closing 

stock at year end. 

Accounting treatment in the consolidated financial statements 

Receivable and payable in respect of above mentioned sale / purchase between M Ltd and G Ltd  

will get eliminated. 

The closing stock of G Ltd will be translated at year end resulting in amount of closing stock of 

Rs. 1,020 lacs (12 lacs Euro X 85). 

The restated amount of closing stock includes three components – 

• Restated amount of cost of inventory for Rs. 850lacs 

• Profit element of Rs. 166 lacs; and 

• Translated amount of profit element of Rs. 4 lacs. 

At time of consolidation, two elements amounting to Rs. 170 lacs will be eliminated from closing 

stock. 
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Answer to questions of IND AS 115 

A1. As per IND AS 115 an entity should combine two or more contracts and account for 

them as a single contract in certain circumstances because the substance of the 

individual contracts cannot be understood without considering the entire 

arrangement. This evaluation takes place at contract inception. 

Two or more contracts may need to be accounted for as a single contract if  they are 

entered into  at or near the same time with the same customer (or with related 

parties), and if one of the following conditions exists: 

a. Contracts are negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective  

b. The amount of consideration paid in one contract depends on the price or 

performance in the other contract; or 

c. The goods or services promised in the contract are a single performance 

obligation.  

Contracts were negotiated at the same time,  

a. But they appear to have separate commercial objectives & 

b. Manufacturing and supply contracts are not dependent on one another &  

c. The planes and parts are not a single performance obligation.  

As none of the conditions are satisfied, contracts for supply of fighter planes and 

supply of parts shall not be combined and instead, they shall be accounted separately. 

 

A2. As per IND AS 115 if the following two conditions are met then the modification shall 

be accounted for as a separate contract: 

i.  the scope of the contract increases because of the addition of promised goods or 

services that are distinct; and 

ii.  the price of the contract increases by an amount of consideration that reflects the 

entity’s stand-alone selling prices of the additional promised goods or services and any 

appropriate adjustments to that price to reflect the circumstances of the particular 

contract.  
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In given case, 

i.  the additional products are distinct from the original products and  

ii.  when the contract is modified, the price of the contract modification for  the  

additional  30  products is an additional ` 28,500 or ` 950 per product which is stand-

alone selling price of the products at the time of the contract modification. 

As both conditions are satisfied the contract modification for the additional 30 products 

is, in effect, a new and separate contract for future products that does not affect the 

accounting for the existing contract. 

 

A3. As per IND AS 115 if the following two conditions are met then the modification shall 

be accounted for as a separate contract: 

i.  the scope of the contract increases because of the addition of promised goods or 

services that are distinct; and 

ii. the price of the contract increases by an amount of consideration that reflects the 

entity’s stand-alone selling prices of the additional promised goods or services and any 

appropriate adjustments to that price to reflect the circumstances of the particular 

contract.  

In above case the providing of machine and offering the maintenance services are two 

different performance obligations. The revenue of sale of machine will be recognised 

at the point of delivery of machine as the obligation is satisfied at point in time and 

revenue of maintenance will be recognised over the period of contract as obligation is 

satisfied over time. The modification is only in maintenance service. Though next six 

months of services are distinct from the services provided in the  first six  months 

before modification in contract there is no increase in the consideration equal to the 

stand alone selling price of the services at the time of modification and hence the 

modification  should be treated as if it  were a termination of  the existing contract 

and the creation of a new contract for a consideration of ` 2,70,000 (` 45,000 * 

remaining 6 months) 
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A4.  As per IND AS 115 good or service is distinct if both of the following criteria are met: 

a. the customer can benefit from the good or service either on its own or together with 

other resources that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or service is 

capable of being distinct in context of product) and 

b. the entity’s promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is separately 

identifiable from other promises in the contract (i.e. the good or service is distinct 

within the context of the contract). 

Further if the entity does not provide a significant service of integrating the good or 

service with other goods or services promised in the contract into a bundle of goods or 

services that represent the combined output for which the customer has contracted. In 

other words, the entity is not using the good or service as an input to produce or deliver 

the combined output specified by the customer. 

In given case the customer may be able to benefit from each promised good or 

service on its own but they do not appear to be separately identifiable within the 

context of the contract. That is, the promised goods and services are subject to 

significant integration, and as a result will be treated as a single performance 

obligation. This is consistent with a view that the customer is primarily interested in 

acquiring a single asset (a water purification plant) rather than a collection of related 

components and services. 

 

A5. Entity promises to customer to provide Broadband Service, Voice Call services & 

Modem. Entity’s promise to provide goods and services is distinct if 

i.  customer can benefit from the good or service either on its own or together 

with other  resources that are readily available to the customer, and 

ii.  entity’s promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is separately 

identifiable from other promises in the contract  

For broadband and voice call services - 



AJ Education Next   IND AS 115 

4 

Broadband and voice services are separately identifiable from other promises as 

company has various plans to provide the two services separately. These two services 

are not dependant or interrelated. Also the customer can benefit on its own from the 

services received. 

For sale of modem - 

Customer can either buy product from entity or third party. No significant 

customisation or modification is required for selling product. 

Based on the evaluation we can say that there are three separate performance obligation: 

Broadband Service, Voice Call services & Modem. 

 

A6.  As per IND AS 115 the goods and services are distinct if the entity does not provide a 

significant service of integrating the good or service with other goods or services 

promised in the contract. In other words, the entity is not using the good or service as an 

input to produce or deliver the combined output specified by the customer and the goods 

or services are not highly dependent on, or highly interrelated with, other goods or 

services promised in the contract. 

Entity A analyses that it will be  required to  continually alter the  design of  the  

shopping centre and parking facility during construction as well as continually assess 

the propriety  of  the  materials initially selected for the project. Therefore, the design 

and construction phases are highly dependent on one another (i.e., the two phases are 

highly interrelated). Entity A also determines that significant customisation and 

modification of the design  and  construction  services is required in order to fulfil the 

performance obligation under the  contract. Entity A concludes that the design and 

construction services will be bundled and accounted for as one performance 

obligation. 

 

A7.  There are two variable considerations in the given ` 2.5 crores of promised 

consideration and incentive bonus based on rating. In determining the transaction 
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price, the entity prepares a separate estimate for each element of variable 

consideration to which the entity will be entitled using the estimation methods 

described in IND AS 115. If the number of possible outcomes are many then expected 

value method and if the number of outcomes are only two then the most expected 

method should be used. Accordingly,   

a. Entity can better predict the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled 

using the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration associated 

with the daily penalty or incentive (i.e. ` 2.5 cr., plus or minus ` 1 lakh per day).  

b. in case of incentive bonuses as there are only two possible outcomes  (` 15 lakhs 

or ` Nil) the entity should use the most likely amount. 

 

A8.  In determining the transaction price, AST Limited separately estimates variable 

consideration for each element of variability i.e. the early completion bonus and the 

quality bonus. AST Limited decides to use the expected value method to estimate the 

variable consideration associated with the early completion bonus because there is a 

range of possible outcomes and the entity has experience with a large number of 

similar contracts that provide a reasonable basis to predict future outcomes. 

Therefore, the entity expects this method to best predict the amount of variable 

consideration associated with the early completion bonus.  AST’s best estimate of 

the early completion bonus is ` 2.13 crores, calculated as shown in the following 

table: 

Bonus % Bonus (` in crores) Probability Probability-weighted Bonus ` 

15% 3.75 25% 0.9375 

10% 2.50 40% 1.00 

5% 1.25 15% 0.1875 

0% - 20%      - 

   2.125 

AST Limited decides to use the most likely amount to estimate the variable 
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consideration associated with the potential quality  bonus  because  there  are  only  

two  possible  outcomes  (` 2 crores or ` Nil) and this method would best predict the 

amount of consideration associated with the quality bonus. AST Ltd. believes the 

most likely amount of the quality bonus is ` 2 crores. 

 

A9.  The entity accounts for the services as a single performance obligation because it is 

providing a series of distinct services that are substantially the same and have the same 

pattern of transfer (the services transfer to the customer over time and use the same 

method to measure progress—that is, a time-based measure of progress). The variable 

consideration is included only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant 

reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the 

uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.  In 

assessing high probability an entity shall consider both the likelihood and magnitude of 

the revenue reversal. 

The entity observes that the promised consideration is dependent on the market and 

thus is highly susceptible to factors outside the entity's influence. In addition, the 

incentive fee has a large number and a broad range of possible consideration 

amounts. Therefore, at contract inception, the entity cannot conclude that it is highly 

probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative amount of revenue recognised 

would not occur. And the same situation persists at year end as well as quarter end. 

Hence entity cannot include incentive fees in the transaction price.  

However for management services the uncertainty of variability gets resolved once 

the service is provided hence at the end of each quarter, the entity concludes that it  

can include in  the  transaction  price  the actual amount of the quarterly management 

fee. Accordingly at 31/03/2020, the client's assets under management are ` 100 

crores. Therefore, the resulting quarterly management fee and the transaction price is 

` 2 crores. Consequently, the entity recognises ` 2 crores as revenue for the quarter 

ended  31/03/2020. 
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A10.  The entity may conclude that ` 140,000, or 2 percent of the contract price, is not 

significant, and the entity may not need to adjust the consideration promised in 

determining the transaction price. However, when the advance payment was larger 

and received further in advance, such that the entity may conclude that ` 1,400,000 

represents the financing component based on an  analysis  of the facts and 

circumstances. In such a case, the entity may conclude that ` 1,400,000, or 20% of 

the contract price is significant, and the entity should adjust the consideration 

promised in determining the transaction price. 

 

A11.  As per IND AS 115 for calculating the financial element in the transactions an entity 

shall use the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction 

between the entity and its customer at contract inception. An entity may be able to 

determine that rate by identifying the rate that discounts the nominal amount of the 

promised consideration to the cash selling price. After contract inception, an entity shall 

not update the discount rate for changes in interest rates or other circumstances. 

Case A—Contractual discount rate reflects the rate in a separate financing transaction 

VT Limited observes that the 10% contractual rate of interest reflects  the rate  that  

would  be  used in a separate financing transaction between the entity and its  

customer  at  contract  inception. The market terms of the financing mean that the cash 

selling price of the equipment is ` 1 crore. This amount is recognised as revenue and 

as a loan receivable when control of the equipment transfers to the customer. The 

entity accounts for the receivable in accordance with  Ind AS 109. 

Case B—Contractual discount rate does not reflect the rate in a separate financing 

transaction:  As10% contractual rate of interest is significantly lower than the 14% 

interest rate that would be used in a separate financing transaction. This suggests that 

the cash selling price is less than ` 1 crore. VT Ltd. determines the transaction price 

by adjusting the promised amount of consideration to reflect the contractual 
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payments using the 14% interest rate. Consequently, the entity determines that the 

transaction price as present value of 60 monthly payments of ` 212,470 

discounted at 14%. The entity recognises revenue and a loan receivable for that 

amount. The entity accounts for the loan receivable in accordance with Ind AS 109. 

 

A12.  Journal Entries showing accounting for the significant financing component: 

At contract inception:  

Cash  Dr. ` 4,000 

To Contract liability ` 4,000 

 

Year 1 end:  Interest expense Dr. ` 240 

 To Contract liability  ` 240 

 

Year 2 end: Interest expense Dr. ` 254 

  To Contract liability ` 254 

Transfer of the asset:   

Contract liability Dr.  ` 4,494 

  To Revenue   ` 4,494 

 

A13.  Company H concludes it will not need to further assess whether a significant 

financing component is present and does not adjust the promised consideration in 

determining the transaction price, as they are applying the practical expedient under 

IND AS 115 i.e. As a practical expedient, an entity need not adjust the promised 

amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if the entity 

expects, at contract inception, that the period between when the entity transfers a 

promised good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or 

service will be one year or less. Hence there is no financing element in the give case. 
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A14. As per IND AS non cash consideration should be measured at fair value. However if 

fair value cannot be estimated then the consideration shall be measured indirectly by 

reference to the stand-alone selling price of the goods or services promised to the 

customer. The entity measures its progress towards complete satisfaction of the 

performance obligation as each week of service is complete. To determine the 

transaction price and the amount of revenue to be recognised, the entity has to measure 

the fair value of 100 shares that are received upon completion of each weekly service. 

The entity shall not reflect any subsequent changes in the fair value of the shares 

received (or receivable) in revenue. 

 

A15.  In determining the transaction price, the entity prepares a separate estimate for each 

element of variable consideration to which the entity will be entitled using the 

estimation methods described  in Ind AS 115. If the number of possible outcome are 

many then expected value method and if the number of outcomes are only two then 

the most expected  method should be used. Further As per IND AS non cash 

consideration should be measured at fair value. The ultimate value of any shares the 

entity might receive could change for two reasons: 

1. the entity earns or does not earn the shares and 

2. the fair value per share may change during the contract term. 

When determining the transaction price, the entity would reflect changes in the 

number of shares to be earned. However, the entity would not reflect changes in the 

fair value per share. Said in another way, the share price of ` 100 is used to value the 

potential bonus throughout the life of the contract. As  a  result,  if  the  entity  earns  

the  bonus,  its  revenue  would  be   ` 350   crores  plus 10 lakhs equity shares at ` 

100 per share for total consideration of ` 360 crores. 

 

A16. As per IND AS 115 non cash consideration should be measured at fair value. If a 

customer contributes goods or services (for example, materials, equipment or labour) to 
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facilitate an entity’s fulfillment of the contract, the entity shall assess whether it obtains 

control of those contributed goods or services. If so, the entity shall account for the 

contributed goods or services as non-cash consideration received from the customer. 

In above case as SK Limited gets the control of the tooling provided by the customer 

the tooling will be considered as the non-cash consideration received from the customer 

and accordingly, at contract inception, SK Limited includes the fair value of the 

tooling in the transaction price at contract inception, which it determines to be ` 27 

crores (` 25 crores for the steering systems and ` 2 crores for the tooling). 

 

A17. As per IND AS 115 payment to the customer is not in exchange for  a  distinct good 

or service that transferred to the entity. This is because the entity does not obtain 

control of any rights to the customer's shelves.   Consequently, the  entity  

determines  that,  the ` 1.5 crores payment is a reduction of the transaction price, 

when the entity recognises revenue for the transfer of the goods.  Consequently, as  the 

entity transfers  goods to  the  customer,  the  entity  reduces   the   transaction   price   

for   each   good   by   10   per   cent  [(` 1.5 crores ÷ ` 15 crores) x 100]. Therefore, in 

the first month in  which  the entity transfers goods to the customer, the entity 

recognises revenue of ` 1.125 crores [ ` 1.25 crores (15 crores / 12 months) invoiced 

amount less ` 0.125 crore of consideration payable to the customer]. 

  

A18. As per IND AS 115, a customer receives a discount for purchasing a bundle of goods or 

services if the sum of the stand-alone selling prices of those promised goods or services 

in the contract exceeds the promised consideration in a contract. Such discounts should 

be allocated to all the products in ratio of there standalone selling price. In given case 

the customer receives a discount for purchasing the bundle of goods because the sum 

of the stand-alone selling prices (` 15,000) exceeds the promised consideration (` 

10,000). The entity considers that there is no observable evidence about the 

performance obligation to which the entire discount belongs. The discount is 
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allocated proportionately across Products  A, B and C.  The discount, and therefore 

the transaction price, is allocated as follows: 

Product Ratio  Allocated transaction price (to nearest `100) 

Product A 5,000    3,300 

Product B 2,500    1,700 

Product C 7,500    5,000 

Total 15,000    10,000 

 

A19. An entity shall allocate a discount entirely to one or more, but not all, performance 

obligations in the contract if all of these criteria are met: 

a. the entity regularly sells each distinct good or service (or each bundle of distinct 

goods or services) in the contract on a stand-alone basis; 

b. the entity also regularly sells on a stand-alone basis a bundle (or bundles) of some of 

those distinct goods or services at a discount to the stand-alone selling prices of the 

goods or services in each bundle; and the discount attributable to each bundle of goods 

or services described in point b is substantially the same as the discount in the contract.  

Note: If a discount is allocated entirely to one or more performance obligations in the 

contract, an entity shall allocate the discount before using the residual approach to 

estimate the stand-alone selling price of a good or service. 

Case A—Allocating a discount to one or more performance obligations 

The contract includes a discount of ` 20,000 on the overall transaction. However, 

because the entity regularly sells Products Y and Z together for ` 50,000 and Product  

X for ` 50,000, it has evidence that the entire discount should be allocated Products 

Y and Z only. 

If the entity transfers control of Products Y and Z at the same point in time: 

consider it as a single performance obligation and recognise the revenue of `50,000 

when Products Y and Z are transferred to the customer. 

If the contract requires the entity to transfer control of Products Y  and  Z  at  
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different points in time, then the allocated amount of ` 50,000 is individually 

allocated to the promises to transfer Y and Z in ratio of their respective stand-alone 

selling  price as follows: 

Product Standalone SP/Ratio    Allocated transaction price` 

Y  25,000     17,857  

Z  45,000     32,143  

Total  70,000     50,000  

 

Case B—Residual approach is appropriate 

Before estimating the stand-alone selling price of Product  Alpha  using the  residual  

approach, the entity determines whether any discount should be allocated to the other 

performance obligations in the contract. 

The standalone selling price of X as observable will remain ` 50,000 and as in case A 

as it is observable that the discount should be allocated only to Y and Z the 

standalone selling price of  Y and Z will remain ` 50,000.  Hence the remaining 

consideration of ` 30,000 will be considered as standalone selling price of Alpha. 

Further the selling price of alpha ` 30,000 is within the range of  its observable 

selling prices (` 15,000 – ` 45,000) and hence acceptable. 

Product Stand-alone SP` Method 

X 50,000 Directly observable 

Y and Z 50,000 Directly observable with discount 

Alpha 30,000 Residual Approach 

Total 130,000  

Case C—Residual approach is inappropriate 

If the same facts as in Case B apply to Case C except the transaction price is  ` 

105,000 the stand- alone selling price of Alpha will be ` 5,000. However ` 5,000 does 

not faithfully depict the amount  of  consideration  to which the entity expects to be 

entitled in exchange for satisfying its performance obligation to transfer Product 
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Alpha, because ` 5,000 does not approximate the stand-alone selling price of Product 

Alpha, which ranges from ` 15,000 – ` 45,000. Consequently, the entity reviews its 

observable data, including sales and margin reports, to estimate the stand-alone 

selling price of Product Alpha using another  suitable  method.  The  entity allocates 

the transaction price of ` 1,05,000 to Products X, Y, Z and  Alpha using the relative 

stand-alone selling prices of those products.  

 

A20. Since all customers will receive a 10% discount on purchases during the next 30 days, 

the only additional discount that provides the customer with a material right is the 

incremental discount of 30% on the products purchased. The entity accounts for the 

promise to provide the incremental discount as a separate performance obligation in the 

contract for the sale of Product A. 

The entity believes there is 80% likelihood that a customer will redeem the voucher 

and on an average, a customer will purchase ` 500 of additional products. 

Consequently, the entity’s estimated stand-alone selling price of the discount voucher 

is ` 120 (` 500 × 30% discount × 80% likelihood). The stand-alone selling prices of 

Product A and the discount voucher and the resulting allocation of the ` 1,000 

transaction price are as follows: 

Performance obligations Stand-alone selling price 

Product A  ` 1000 

Discount voucher  ` 120 

Total  ` 1120 

Performance obligations Ratio  Allocated  transaction price 

Product A `1000  ` 890 

Discount voucher `120  ` 110 

Total `1120  ` 1000 

The entity allocates ` 890 to Product A and recognises revenue for Product A when 

control transfers. The entity allocates ` 110 to the discount voucher and recognises 
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revenue for the  voucher when the customer redeems it for goods or services or when it 

expires. 

1. Cash / Bank  Dr. 1000  2. Customer Liability  Dr. 110 

To Sales / Revenue   890  To Sales/Revenue 110 

To Customer Lability   110 

 

A21. An entity shall allocate a variable amount (and subsequent changes to that amount) 

entirely to a performance obligation or to a distinct good or service that forms part of a 

single performance obligation if variability relate specifically to the entity’s efforts to 

satisfy the performance obligation or transfer the distinct good or service. If above 

criteria does not meet than the allocation requirement for standalone selling price may 

be used.  

Case A—Variable consideration allocated entirely to one performance obligation 

As the variable payment relates specifically to an outcome from the performance 

obligation to transfer Licence B and entity's estimate of the amount of sales-based 

royalties ` 2,000,000 approximates  the  stand- alone selling price of Licence B and 

the fixed amount of ` 1,600,000 approximates the  stand-alone selling price of 

Licence A. The entity allocates ` 1,600,000 to Licence A. 

Accordingly the entity transfers Licence B at inception of the contract but does not 

recognises the revenue because the consideration allocated to Licence B is in the 

form of  a  sales-based  royalty, hence revenue is recognised when subsequent sales 

occurs and on transfer of  Licence A one month later recognise as revenue the ` 

1,600,000. 

Case B—Variable consideration allocated on the basis of stand-alone selling prices 

Even though the variable payments relate specifically to an outcome from the 

performance obligation to transfer Licence B allocating the variable consideration of 

` 3,000,000 entirely to Licence B and consideration of ` 600,000 to Licence A would 

not match with their standalone selling price of ` 2000,000 and ` 1600,000 
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respectively. Hence the at inception of contract consideration of ` 2000,000 will be 

allocated to Licence B i.e.` 333,333 [(` 2,000,000 ÷  ` 3,600,000) ×  ` 600,000]  

However, when an entity licenses intellectual property in which the consideration is 

in the form of a sales-based royalty, the entity recognises the revenue only when the 

subsequent sales occur or the performance obligation is satisfied  (or  partially 

satisfied) whichever is later. Licence B is transferred to the customer at the inception 

of the contract and Licence A  is transferred three months later.  When Licence A is 

transferred, the entity recognises as revenue ` 266,667 [(` 1,600,000 ÷ ` 3,600,000) × 

` 600,000] allocated to Licence A. 

If in the first month, the royalty due from the customer's first month of sales is ` 

400,000. Consequently, the entity recognises as revenue ` 222,222 (` 2,000,000 ÷ ` 

3,600,000 × ` 400,000) allocated to Licence B and the entity  recognises  a  contract  

liability  for  the  ` 177,778 (` 1,600,000 ÷ ` 3,600,000 × ` 400,000) allocated to 

Licence A. This is because although the subsequent sale by the entity's customer has 

occurred, the performance obligation to which the royalty has been allocated has not 

been satisfied. 

 

A22. An entity transfers control of a good or service over time and, therefore, satisfies a 

performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if the customer 

simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s performance 

as the entity performs  

Cable company determines that each increment of its services e.g. day or month, is a 

distinct performance obligation because customer benefits from that period of 

services on its own. Additionally, each increment of service is separately identifiable 

from those preceding and following it i.e. one service period does not significantly 

affect, modify or customise another. Therefore, it can be concluded that its contract 

with customer is a  single performance obligation to provide three years of cable 

service because each of the distinct increments of service is satisfied over time. Also, 
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cable company uses the same measure of progress to recognise revenue on its cable 

television service regardless of the contract’s time period. 

 

A23. AFS has a single performance to provide an opinion on the professional audit 

services proposed  to be provided under the contract with the customer. Evaluating 

the criterion for recognising revenue over a period of time or at a point in time, IND 

AS 115 requires one of the following criterion to be met – 

Criterion (a) – whether the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the 

benefits  from services provided by AFS: WBC shall benefit only when the audit 

opinion  is provided upon completion. And in case the contract was to be terminated, 

any other firm engaged to perform similar services will have to substantially re-

perform. Hence, this criterion is not met. 

Criterion (b) – An asset created that customer controls: This is  service contract and  

no  asset created, over which customer acquires control. 

Criterion (c) – no alternate use to entity and right to seek payment: 

The services provided by AFS are specific to the company –  WBC and do  not  have  

any alternate use to AFS. Further, AFS has a right to enforce payment if contract was 

early terminated,  for reasons other than AFS’s failure to perform. And the profit 

margin approximates what entity otherwise earns. Therefore, criterion (c) is met and 

such performance obligation is said to be met over a period of time. 

 

A24. The Company shall evaluate conditions of Ind AS 115 as follows: 

Criterion (a) – whether the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the 

benefits: Customer can benefit only when the asset is fully constructed and no 

benefits are consumed as it’s constructed. Hence, this criterion is not met. 

Criterion (b) – An asset created that customer controls: as per provided facts, the 

customer does not acquire control of the asset as it’s created. 

Criterion (c) – no alternate use to entity and right to seek payment: 
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The customer has specific right over the asset and company does not have right to 

divert it for any alternate use. In other words, there is contractual restriction to use 

the asset for any alternate purpose. Further in the event of early termination, 

Company has a right to retain any  payments made by the customer. However, such 

payments need not necessarily compensate the selling price of the partially 

constructed asset, if the customer was to stop making payments. Therefore, Company 

does not have a legally enforceable right to payment for work completed to date 

hence the criterion is not met. Thus, revenue cannot be recognised over a period of 

time hence should be recorded at point in time when the asset is delivered.   

 

A25. Input method: Input methods recognise revenue on the basis of the entity’s efforts or 

inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation e.g. resources consumed, labour 

hours expended, costs incurred, time elapsed or machine hours used, relative to the total 

expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation. In given case costs to 

be incurred comprise two major components – elevators and cost of construction 

service. 

1. The elevators are part of the overall construction project and are not a distinct 

performance obligation 

2. The cost of elevators is substantial to the overall project and are incurred well in 

advance. 

3. Upon delivery at site, customer acquires control of such elevators. 

Therefore, applying Input method the measure of progress should be made based on 

percentage of costs incurred relative to the total budgeted costs. 

However the cost of elevators does not represent the progress of the entity in 

satisfaction of performance obligation and hence should be excluded when measuring 

such progress from cost incurred and transaction price and revenue for elevators 

should be recognized to the extent of its costs. 

The revenue to be recognized is measured as follows: 
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Particulars Amount (`) Exclude    Net 

Transaction price 50,00,000  15,00,000  35,00,000 

Total Cost 40,00,000  15,00,000  25,00,000 

Total cost incurred 20,00,000  15,00,000  5,00,000 

.’. % of work Completed (5,00,000/25,00,000 * 100)      20% 

Revenue to be recognised:       Amount `  

Revenue recognised  (35,00,000 * 20%) + 15,00,000  22,00,000 

Cost Incurred  (5,00,000 + 15,00,000)    20,00,000  

Profit            2,00,000 

 

A26.  Particular Amount `  Treatment 

Design services  ` 50,000 Assess under Ind AS 115. Any resulting asset 

would be amortised over 7 years. 

Hardware           ` 140,000 Account for asset under IND AS 16 

Software            ` 100,000 Account for asset under IND AS 38 

Migration & Testing   ` 110,000 Assess under IND AS 115. Any resulting asset 

would be amortised over 7 years. 

TOTAL ` 400,000  

 

A27. An asset recognised for cost incurred for obtaining or fulfilling the contract shall be 

amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the 

goods or services to which the asset relates. The most appropriate amortisation period is 

likely to be seven years (i.e. the initial term of five years plus two anticipated one year 

renewals) because that is the period over which the entity expects to provide services 

under the contract to which the capitalised costs relate. 

 

A28. To account for the transfer of products with a right of return (and for some  services that  

are provided subject to a refund), an entity shall recognise all of the following: 
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a.  revenue for the transferred products in the amount of consideration to which the entity 

expects to be entitled (therefore, revenue would not be recognised for the products 

expected to be returned); 

b.  a refund liability: For any amounts received (or receivable) for which an entity does not 

expect to be entitled; and 

c.  an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) for its right to recover products 

from customers on settling the refund liability, measured at former carrying amount of 

the product (for example, inventory) less any expected costs to recover those products 

(including potential decreases in the value to the entity of returned products). 

The entity also considers the requirements of constraining estimates of variable 

consideration to determine whether the estimated amount of variable consideration of 

` 48,500 (` 50 × 970 products not expected to be returned) can be included in the 

transaction price.  

The entity considers that although the returns are outside the entity's influence, it  has  

significant experience in estimating returns for this product and customer class.  

In addition, the uncertainty will be resolved within a short time frame (ie the 30-day 

return period).  

Thus, the entity concludes that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the 

cumulative amount of revenue recognised (i.e. ` 48,500) will not occur as the 

uncertainty is resolved (i.e. over the return period). 

The entity estimates that the costs of recovering the products will be immaterial and 

expects that the returned products can be resold at a profit. 

Accordingly,   

1. revenue of ` 48,500 (` 50 × 970) 

2. a refund liability of ` 1,500 (` 50 refund × 30) and 

3. an asset of ` 900 (` 30 × 30) 

1. Cash / Bank       Dr.  ` 50000    

 To Revenue       ` 48500 
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 To Refund Liability      ` 1500 

 

2. Asset for goods to returned    Dr.  `900 

 To Cost of sales       ` 900 

 

A29. In many cases, even though a non-refundable upfront fee relates to an activity that the 

entity is required to undertake at or near contract inception to fulfil the contract, that 

activity does not result in the transfer of a promised good or service to the customer. 

Instead, the upfront fee is an advance payment for future goods or services and, 

therefore, would be recognised as revenue when those future goods or services are 

provided. If the non-refundable upfront fee relates to a good or service, the entity shall 

evaluate whether to account for the good or service as a separate performance 

obligation. 

In above case by selling a new connection, the entity promises to supply data services 

to customer. Customer will not be able to benefit from just buying a data card and 

data services from third party. The activity of registering and activating connection is 

not a service to customer and therefore does not represent satisfaction of 

performance obligation. Entity’s obligation is to provide data service and hence 

activation is not a separate performance obligation.  

 

A30. If an entity has an obligation or a right to repurchase the asset (a forward or a call 

option), a customer does not obtain control of the asset. Consequently, the entity shall 

account for the contract as either of the following: 

Repurchase Price < Original SP Repurchase Price >= Original SP 

a lease in accordance with Ind AS 17, 

Leases, 

a financing arrangement as explained 

below. 

Since the original selling price (` 1 million) is lower than the repurchase price (` 1.1 

million), this is construed to be a financing arrangement and accounted as follows: 
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a.  Amount received shall be recognized as ‘liability’ 

b. Difference between sale price and repurchase price to be recognised as ‘finance 

cost’ and recognised over the repurchase term. 

 

A31. Refer chart for Repurchase Agreements. Against payment of ` 1,000,000; the 

customer only has a right to use the asset and put it back to the entity for ` 900,000. 

Further as the repurchase price is more than the expected market price of ` 7,50,000 

the customer has a significant economic incentive. .’. This will be accounted as a 

lease transaction in which difference between original selling price (i.e. ` 1,000,000) 

and repurchase price (i.e. ` 900,000) shall be recognized as lease income over the 

period of lease. At the end of repurchase term, i.e. 31/12/20X1, if  the customer does 

not exercise  such right, then the control would be passed to the customer at that time 

and revenue shall be recognized for sale of goods for repurchase price (i.e. ` 

900,000). 

 

A32. Here the operator has a contractual right to receive cash from the grantor. The grantor 

has little, if any, discretion to avoid payment, usually because the agreement is 

enforceable by law. The operator has an unconditional right to receive cash if the 

grantor contractually guarantees to pay  the operator.  Hence, operator recognizes a 

financial asset to  the  extent it has a contractual right to receive cash. Here the 

operator has a contractual right to charge users of the public services. A right to 

charge users of the public service is not an unconditional right to receive cash 

because the amounts are contingent on the extent that the public uses the service. 

Therefore,  the operator shall recognise an intangible asset to the extent it receives a 

right (a licence) to charge users of the public service. 

Bhilwara - Jabalpur Toll Project - Journal Entries 

Particulars      Dr. Cr.             

  (` in crores) (` in crores) 
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During construction:   

1 Financial asset A/c Dr. 110  

 To Construction revenue   110 

[To recognise revenue relating to construction services, to be settled in case] 

2 Cost of construction (profit or loss) Dr. 100  

 To Bank A/c (As and when incurred)   100 

[To recognise costs relating to construction services]   

 During the operation phase:   

3 Financial asset Dr. 15  

 To Finance revenue (As and when received or due to receive)  15 

[To recognise interest income under the financial asset model]   

4 Financial asset Dr. 75  

 To Revenue [(200-110) – 15]  75 

[To recognise revenue relating to the operation phase]   

5 Bank A/c Dr. 200  

 To Financial asset  200 

[To recognise cash received from the grantor]   

Kolhapur-Nagpur Expressway - Intangible asset Journal Entries 

Particulars      Dr. Cr.             

  (` in crores) (` in crores) 

1 During construction:  

Cost of construction (profit or loss)      Dr. 110    

 To Bank A/c (As and when incurred)  110 

[To recognise costs relating to construction services]   

2 Intangible asset Dr.200  

 To Revenue  200 

[To recognise revenue relating to construction services provided for non-cash 

consideration]   
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During the operation phase:   

3 Amortisation expense Dr.200  

 To Intangible asset (accumulated amortisation)  200 

[To recognise amortisation expense relating to the operation phase over the period of 

operation]   

4 Bank A/c Dr. ?  

 To Revenue  ? 

[To recognise revenue relating to the operation phase] 
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 Right to Use 

A1. In the above case, ABC Ltd has the right to control the use of the identified asset during 

the period of use because they have the power to determine how the warehouse will be 

used during the contractually defined usage periods. The analysis should focus on the 

rights and economics of the use of the warehouse for the specified usage periods (May 

and June). During the period of use, ABC Ltd has the rights to determine how much of 

a crop to place in storage, and the timing of placing and removing it from storage. 

These rights are more significant to the economics of the use of the asset than the 

loading and unloading services performed by XYZ Ltd during the same period. ABC 

Ltd receives all of the economic benefit from use of the asset during those specified 

time periods. Therefore, contract contains a lease for the specified period of term. 

 

 Right to obtain all of the economic benefits 

A2.  Company MNO has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from 

use of the solar farm over the 15-year period because it obtains: 

• Electricity produced by farm over lease term i.e. primary product from use of asset & 

• the renewable energy credits i.e. by-product from use of the asset. 

 Although PQR receives economic benefits from the solar farm in the form of tax 

credits, these economic benefits relate to the ownership of the solar farm and not to use 

of solar farm & therefore are not considered in this assessment. 

 

 Right to direct the use of an asset 

A3. Yes, Customer X has the right to direct the use of the identified vehicle throughout the 

period of use because it has the right to change how the vehicle is used, when or 
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whether the vehicle is used, where the vehicle goes and what the vehicle is used for. 

Supplier Y’s limits on certain uses for the vehicle and modifications to it are considered 

protective rights that define the scope of Customer X’s use of the asset, but do not 

affect the assessment of whether Customer X directs the use of the asset. 

 

A4. Entity A does not direct the use of the asset that most significantly drives the economic 

benefits because Supplier H determines how and when the equipment is operated once 

the contract is signed. Therefore, Supplier H has the right to control the use of the 

identified asset during the period of use. Although Entity A stipulates the product to 

be provided and has input into the initial decisions regarding the use of the asset 

through its involvement in the design of the asset, it does not have decision making 

rights over how and for what purpose the asset will be used over the asset during the 

period of use. This arrangement is a supply agreement, not a lease. 

 

 Identified Asset 

A5. Yes, the said rolling stock is an identified asset. Though the rolling stock is not 

explicitly specified in the contract, it is implicitly specified because Supplier ABC 

must use it to fulfil the contract. 

 

A6.  Yes, said car is an identified asset. Though car cannot be identified at inception of 

contract, it is implicitly specified at the time and same will be made available to X. 

 

A7. Yes, the said five fibers are identified assets because they are physically distinct and 

explicitly specified in the contract. 

 

A8.  Yes, the capacity portion of the pipeline is an identified asset. While 95% of the 

pipeline’s capacity is not physically distinct from the remaining capacity of the 

pipeline, it represents substantially all of the capacity of the entire pipeline and thereby 
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provides Customer XYZ with the right to obtain substantially all of the economic 

benefits from use of the pipeline. However, in case of 65% capacity, the pipeline’s 

capacity is less than substantially all of the capacity of the pipeline, Customer XYZ 

does not have right to obtain substantially all of economic benefits from use of pipeline. 

 

 Substantive Right to substitute 

A9. The customer does not have the right to use an identified asset because, at the inception 

of the contract, the supplier has the practical ability to substitute the server and would 

benefit economically from such a substitution. Thus, there is no identified asset.  

 

A10. The substitution right is not substantive, and Server No. 10 would be an identified asset 

because the supplier does not have the practical ability to substitute the asset and there 

is no evidence of economic benefit to the supplier for substituting the asset.  

 

 Lease Term 

A11. Scenario A: At lease commencement date, the lease term is six years (being the non-

cancellable period). The renewal period of two years is not taken into consideration 

since it is mentioned that Entity ABC is not reasonably certain to exercise the option. 

  

 Scenario B: At the lease commencement, Entity XYZ determines that it is reasonably 

certain to exercise the renewal option because it would suffer a significant economic 

penalty if it abandoned the leasehold improvements at the end of the initial non-

cancellable period of eight years. Thus, at the lease commencement, Entity XYZ 

concludes that the lease term is 10 years (being 8 years of non-cancellable period plus 

renewal period of 2 years where the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the option). 

 Scenario C: At the lease commencement date, the lease term is 21 months (three 

months per year over the seven annual periods as specified in the contract), i.e., the 

period over which Entity PQR controls the right to use the underlying asset. 
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A12. Ind AS 116 requires a lessee to reassess the lease term if there is change in business 

decision of the company which is directly relevant to exercising or not exercising an 

option to renew / extend the lease. In given case, M at the end of third year has extended 

to include another floor in the same building on account of acquiring another company. 

As Retailer M has entered into fresh lease of another floor for a seven-year term, it is 

reasonably certain to exercise the renewal option of original lease for a further five-

year term. Hence Retailer M will have to reassess lease term at the end of third year. 

 

A13. In given case, as per Ind AS 116, announcement by government to discontinue the use 

of underlying asset will prohibit lessee from exercising the extension option that was 

already included in the non-cancellable period by Company N and hence, Company N 

will reassess the non-cancellable period to exclude the extension option of 5 years. 

  

 Separating lease component  

A14. Scenario A: Lessee would be unable to benefit from the use of the excavator without 

also using the accessories. Therefore, the excavator is dependent upon the accessories. 

Thus, from the perspective of the lessee, the contract contains one lease component. 

 Scenario B: The lessee can benefit from the loading truck on its own or together with 

other readily available resources because the loading truck could be deployed for other 

uses independent of the excavator. The lessee can also benefit from the use of the 

excavator on its own or together with other readily available resources. Thus, from the 

perspective of the lessee, the contract contains two lease components, viz., a lease of 

the excavator (together with the accessories) and a lease of the loading truck. 

 

A15. There are three components in the arrangement – the building assets (office building 

and HVAC), the office furniture, and the maintenance agreement. 

a. Office building & HVAC system: They are one lease component because they cannot 

function independently of each other. The HVAC system was designed and tailored 
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specifically to be integrated into the office building and cannot be removed and used 

in another building without incurring substantial costs. These building assets are a lease 

component because they are identified assets for which Entity L directs the use. 

 

b. Office furniture: It functions independently & can be used on its own. It is also a lease 

component because it is a group of distinct assets for which Entity L directs the use. 

 

c. Maintenance agreement: It is a non-lease component because it is a contract for 

service and not for the use of a specified asset. 

 

A16. Scenario A: The contract contains two components, viz., a lease component (lease of 

equipment) and a non- lease component (maintenance). The amount paid for 

administrative tasks does not transfer a good or service to the lessee. Assuming that 

the lessee does not elect to use practical expedient of Ind AS 116, both lessee and lessor 

account for lease of equipment & maintenance components separately and the 

administration charge is included in the total consideration to be allocated between 

those components. Therefore, total consideration of ` 10,000 will be allocated to lease 

component (equipment) and non-lease component (maintenance). 

  

 Scenario B: Contract still contains 2 components, viz., a lease component (lease of 

equipment) & a non-lease component (maintenance). Similar to amount paid for 

administrative tasks, the restoration does not transfer a good or service to lessee as it 

is only performed at end of lease term. Therefore, total consideration of ` 10,000 will 

be allocated to lease component (equipment) & non-lease component (maintenance). 
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A17. Particulars    SASP  Ratio  Contract price  

 Lease    85000   17  76,500    

 Maintenance     15000   3  13,500 

      100,000    90,000 

 

 Recognition & Measurement  

 Books of Lessee: Fixed Lease Payments  

A18.  The fixed lease payments are ̀  2,00,000. Although real estate taxes are explicitly stated 

in the contract, they do not represent a separate non-lease component as they do not 

provide a separate good or service. The right to use the office building is the only 

component. Annual lease payments of ` 2,00,000 represent payments related to that 

single lease component. 

 

A19. Q considers the contract and notes that although the lease payments contain variability 

based on usage, and there is a realistic possibility that Q may not use the machinery in 

some months, a monthly payment of 1,000 is unavoidable. Accordingly, this is an in-

substance fixed payment, and is included in the measurement of the lease liability. 

 

A20. In the given case, lease payments for purposes of classifying the lease are the fixed 

monthly payments of ` 1 lakh plus the minimum annual increase of 2% of previous 

rental rate. P is required to pay no less than a 2% increase regardless of level of sales 

activity, therefore, this minimum level of increase is in substance fixed lease payment. 

 

A21. Lease contains in substance fixed payments of ̀  10,00,000 per year, which are included 

in initial measurement of lease liability. Additional ` 5,00,000 that N expects to pay 

per year are variable payments that do not depend on an index or a rate but usage. 
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 Variable lease payment 

A22. At the lease commencement date, the lease payments are ` 1,000 per year for 10 years. 

The entity does not take into consideration the potential future changes in the index. 

At the end of year one, the payments have not changed and hence, the liability is not 

updated. At the end of year two, when the lease payments change, the entity updates 

the remaining eight lease payments to ` 1,080 per year (i.e., ` 1,000 / 100 x 108). 

 

A23. There are two components in the arrangement, viz., a lease of equipment and the 

purchase of consumables. Even though Customer ABC may believe that it is highly 

unlikely to purchase lesser than 8,000 units of consumables every year, in this example, 

there are no lease payments for purposes of initial measurement (for Entity XYZ and 

Customer ABC) and lease classification (for Entity XYZ). Entity XYZ and Customer 

ABC would allocate the payments associated with the future payments to the lease and 

consumables component of the contract. 

 

A24. At the commencement date, Entity A measures the lease liability as the present value 

of the fixed lease payments (i.e. five annual payments of 5,00,000). Although Entity A 

has elected to apply the practical expedient to combine non-lease components (i.e. 

water charges) with the lease component, Entity A excludes the non-lease component 

from its lease liability because they are variable payments that depend on usage. That 

is, the nature of the costs does not become fixed just because Entity A has elected not 

to separate them from the fixed lease payments. Entity A recognises the payments for 

water – as a variable lease payment – in profit or loss when they are incurred. In 

contrast, if B does not elect to apply the practical expedient to combine lease and non-

lease components, then it recognises the payments for water – as an operating expense 

– in profit or loss when they are incurred. 
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 Accounting 

A25. In the given case, the lease payments depend on a rate (i.e., LIBOR) and hence is 

included in measuring lease liability, as per Ind AS 116, the lease payments should 

initially be measured using the rate (i.e. LlBOR) as at the commencement date. LIBOR 

at that date is 2 %, therefore, in measuring the lease liability, it is assumed that each 

year the payments will increase by 2 per cent, as follows 

 Year  Cash Flow Discount factor @ 5% PV of lease payments 

1  1,00,000    1   100,000 

2  1,02,000    0.952   97,102 

3  1,04,040    0.907   94,364 

4   1,06,121    0.864   91,689 

5  1,08,243    0.823   89,084 

6  1,10,408    0.784   86,560 

7  1,12,616    0.746   84,012  

8  1,14,869    0.711   81,672 

9  1,17,166    0.677   79,321 

10  1,19,509    0.645   77,083 

         Lease Liability  8,80,887 

 

A26. Initial measurement of lease liability      8,50,000 

 Lease payments made to Entity Z at or before commencement date 10,000 

 Initial direct cost           1,000 

 Lease incentives received from Entity Z     (50,000) 

 Initial measurement of right-of-use asset     8,11,000 

 

A27. In the given case, the legal requirement to perform a check after every 1,00,000 flight 

hours does not directly lead to an obligation as it depends on future circumstances. 

However, as the check must be carried out at the end of the lease irrespective of the 
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actual number of flight hours gives rise to an obligation. As a result, company H has 

to recognize a provision for the costs of the final check (“present value of the expected 

cost”) at the beginning of the lease term and must be included in the cost of the right-

of-use (ROU) asset as per IND AS 116. 

 

A28. At the commencement date, Entity ABC would initially recognise ROU Asset and 

the corresponding Lease Liability of ` 77,364 which is calculated as follows: 

 Year  Cash flows  PVF@12%  Present Value 

 1  20,000   0.8929  17,858 

 2  30,000   0.7972  23,916 

  3  50,000   0.7118  35,590 

   1,00,000     77,364 

 Subsequent accounting of lease liability / Amortisation Schedule 

Year  Opening balance   + Interest -  Payments  =  Closing balance 

1   77,364    9,284  (20,000)   66,648 

2   66,648    7,998  (30,000)   44,646 

3   44,646    5,354* (50,000)    - 

 

Journal Entries 

On Commencement Date   ROU Asset Dr. 77364 

       To Lease Liability  77364 

 

Subsequent Year ends   1   2   3 

Interest / P&L…..Dr.    9,284   7,998   5354 

Lease Liability ….Dr.    10,716   22,003  44646 

To Cash / Bank     20,000   30,000  50,000 
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Depreciation …….Dr    25,788   25,788  25,788 

To ROU Asset     25,788     25,788  25,788 

ROU Asset is depreciated using SLM 

 

A29. As Initial payment is done on first day of year as well as incentive is provided on first 

day of second year it can be concluded that all installments are payable on first day of 

each year i.e. in advance.  

 

 Calculation of Lease Liability  

 Year Start  Cash Flows        PVF@ 9.04%   PV 

 1   5,00,000   1   5,00,000 

 2  3,15,000   0.92   2,89,800 

 3  5,30,450   0.84   4,45,578 

 4  5,46,364   0.77   4,20,700 

 5  5,62,754   0.71   3,99,555 

 6  5,79,637   0.65   3,76,764 

 7  5,97,026   0.59   3,52,245 

 8  6,14,937   0.55   3,38,215 

 9  6,33,385   0.50   3,16,693 

 10  6,52,387   0.46    3,00,098 

 10 End 30,00,000   0.42   12,60,000 

   Lease Liability     49,99,648Approx 50,00,000 

 The ROU asset is equal to lease liability because there is no adjustment required for 

initial direct costs incurred by Company EFG, lease payments made at or before lease 

commencement date, or lease incentives received prior to lease commencement date. 

 Journal Entries at commencement of lease 

 Right-of-use Asset   Dr.    ` 50,00,000  

  To Lease Liability      ` 50,00,000 
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 Interest to be recognised will calculated using amortisation schedule as follows 

 Year OP BAL Interst@9.04% Cash Flow Cl Balance 

0  50,00,000      5,00,000   45,00,000  

1  45,00,000   4,06,800    3,15,000   45,91,800  

2  45,91,800   4,15,099   5,30,450   44,76,449  

3  44,76,449   4,04,671    5,46,364   43,34,756  

4  43,34,756   3,91,862    5,62,754   41,63,864  

5  41,63,864   3,76,413   5,79,637   39,60,640  

6  39,60,640   3,58,042    5,97,026   37,21,656  

7  37,21,656   3,36,438    6,14,937   34,43,156  

8  34,43,156   3,11,261    6,33,385   31,21,033  

9  31,21,033   2,82,141    6,52,387   27,50,787  

10  27,50,787   2,49,213    30,00,000   -  

 

 Deprecation: Since the purchase option is reasonably certain to be exercised, EFG 

would amortize the right-of- use asset over the economic life of the underlying asset 

(40 years). Annual amortization expense would be ` 1,25,000 (` 50,00,000 / 40 years)

  

 Exemption of Recognition  

A30. Scenario A: As the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the extension option, the 

lease term is greater than 12 months (i.e., 13 months). Therefore, the lessee will not 

account for the lease as a short-term lease. 

 Scenario B: In this case, the lease term is less than 12 months, i.e., 9 months. Thus, 

the lessee may account for the said lease under the short-term lease exemption, i.e., it 

recognises lease payments as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease 

term or another systematic basis. 
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 Remeasurement  

A31. Since Entity W is now reasonably certain that it will exercise its renewal option, it is 

required to remeasure the lease in the first quarter of 2020.  

 Calculation of Lease liability & ROU asset on commencement date. 

 Year Start   Cash Flows  PVF@5%  PV 

 1   1,00,000  1.000   1,00,000 

2   1,00,000  0.952   95,200 

3   1,00,000  0.907   90,700 

4   1,00,000  0.864   86,400 

5   1,00,000  0.823   82,300 

Lease liability as at commencement date   4,54,600 

 Calculation of Carrying Amount of lease liability on 01/01/2020 

 Year OP BAL Interst@5% Cash Flow  Cl Balance 

 1 4,54,600 -   1,00,000  3,54,600 

2 3,54,600 17,730  1,00,000  2,72,330 

3 2,72,330 13,617  1,00,000  1,85,947 

4 1,85,947    

 Calculation of Carrying Amount of ROU Asset on 01/01/2020 

 Year Op Bal  Depreciation  Cl. Bal 

1 4,54,600 90,920  3,63,680 

2 3,63,680 90,920  2,72,760 

3 2,72,760 90,920  1,81,840 

 4 1,81,840    

 Calculation of Revised Lease Liability at Revised Discount rate 

 Year Cash Flow    PVF@6%   PV 

 4 100000*125/120 = 104000 1    1,04,000 

5 104000     0.943    98,072 

6 110000*125/120 = 114400 0.890    1,01,816 
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7 114400     0.840    96,096 

8 114400     0.792    90,605 

 Revised Lease Liability         4,90,589 

  

 Calculation of difference due to revision of Lease Liability  

 Revised Value on 01/01/2020 of Lease Liability     4,90,589 

 Carrying Amount on 01/01/2020 of Lease Liability    (1,85,947) 

 Difference            3,05,642  

  

 Journal Entry for Reassessment 

 ROU Asset………………….Dr.      3,05,642 

 To Lease Liability         3,05,642 

 

 Modification of Lease 

A32. Lessee accounts for the modification as a separate lease, separate from the original 10-

year lease because the modification grants Lessee an additional right to use an 

underlying asset, and the increase in consideration for the lease is commensurate with 

the stand-alone price of the additional right-of-use adjusted to reflect the circumstances 

of the contract. In this example, the additional underlying asset is the new 3,000 square 

metres of office space. Accordingly, at the commencement date of the new lease (at 

the end of the second quarter of Year 6), Lessee recognises a ROU Asset and a lease 

liability relating to the lease of the additional 3,000 square metres of office space. 

Lessee does not make any adjustments to the accounting for the original lease of 2,000 

square metres of office space as a result of this modification. 

 

 

 

 



AJ Education NeXt  

   

A33. Modification is accounted as separate lease if both the following conditions are met  

a.  modification increases scope of lease by adding right to use one/more underlying assets.  

b.  consideration increases by stand-alone price of increase in scope & any appropriate 

adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of particular contract. 

 In given case as none of the above conditions are satisfied modification will not be 

treated as separate lease. Accordingly, existing lease liability will be remeasured based 

on revised lease payment at revised discount rate.  

 

 Calculation of Lease Liability     

 Year Particulars  Cash Flow Rate Sum of PVF Amount  

 1 – 10 Original 1,00,000 6%  7.360  7,36,000  

 7 – 14 Revised 1,00,000 7%  5.971  5,97,100  

 Amortisation Schedule for Original Lease  

 Year OP BAL Interst@6% Cash Flow  Cl Balance 

 1 7,36,000 44,160   1,00,000   6,80,160  

2  6,80,160   40,810   1,00,000    6,20,970  

3  6,20,970   37,258    1,00,000    5,58,228  

4  5,58,228   33,494    1,00,000    4,91,721  

5  4,91,721   29,503   1,00,000    4,21,225  

6  4,21,225   25,273   1,00,000    3,46,498 

 Calculation of adjustment Amount 

 Carrying amount of Lease liability on modification date  3,45,498 

 Revised Lease Liability       5,97,100 

 Increase in Lease Liability      2,51,602 

 Further as the scope of the lease has not decreased the difference in lease liability will 

be adjusted in ROU asset i.e. ROU asset will increase by ` 2,51,602 
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A34. The decrease in the scope of lease it will accounted as revision of existing lease  

 Calculation of ROU Asset and Lease Liability on commencement date 

 Year  Cash Flow  Sum of PV@ 6%   PV 

 1-10   50,000    7.360    3,68,000 

  

 Amortisation Schedule / Carrying amount of liability on modification date. 

 Year OP BAL Interst@6% Cash Flow  Cl Balance 

  1 3,68,000  22,080    50,000    3,40,080  

 2  3,40,080   20,405    50,000    3,10,485  

 3  3,10,485   18,629    50,000    2,79,114  

 4  2,79,114   16,747    50,000    2,45,861  

 5  2,45,861   14,752    50,000    2,10,612 

 

 Calculation of Carrying Amount of ROU asset on the date of Modification  

 Cost on initial recognition       3,68,000 

 Depreciation for 5 year using SLM (368000/10*5)   1,84,000 

 Carrying amount on modification date     1,84,000 

  

 The scope has reduced the leased space by 50%, both the ROU Asset & Lease Liability 

will be decreased by 50% and difference if any will be taken to P&L. 

 Particular’s  Carrying Amount  Reduction @50% Revised Amount 

 ROU Asset    1,84,000    92,000     92,000 

 Lease Liability   2,10,612   1,05,306    1,05,306 

 .’. Gain on Modification     13,306    

 

 Remeasurement of Remaining Liability  

 Original Liability after modification       1,05,306 

 Liability based on revised terms & revised discount rate  
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 Year  Cash Flow  Sum of PV@ 5%   PV 

 6-10   30,000     4.329   1,29,870  1,29,870 

 .’. Increase in remaining Lease Liability       24,564 

 Corresponding Effect of change in the lease liability is given to ROU Asset, hence the 

carrying amount of asset after modification will increase by ` 24,564. 

 

A35. This reduction in the consideration will be treated as modification of existing lease 

contract and the difference in the carrying amount of lease and revised amount of lease 

is treated as adjustment to ROU asset. 

 

 Calculation of Lease Liability 

 Year Particulars  Cash Flow Rate Sum of PVF Amount  

 1 – 10 Original 1,00,000 6%  7.360  7,36,000  

 6 – 10 Revised 95,000 7%  4.100  3,89,500  

  

 Amortisation Schedule / Carrying amount of liability on modification date. 

 Year OP BAL Interst@6% Cash Flow Cl Balance 

1 7,36,000 44,160    1,00,000   6,80,160  

2  6,80,160   40,810    1,00,000   6,20,970  

3  6,20,970   37,258   1,00,000   5,58,228  

4  5,58,228   33,494    1,00,000   4,91,721  

5  4,91,721   29,503    1,00,000   4,21,225 

 

Calculation of Difference 

Carrying Amount of lease liability     4,21,225 

Revised Lease Liability        3,89,500 

Decrease in Lease Liability       31,725 

Corresponding Effect will be given to ROU Asset. 
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A36. Calculation of ROU asset & Lease Liability on commencement date 

 

 Year Particulars  Cash Flow Rate Sum of PVF Amount  

 1 – 10 Original 1,00,000 6%  7.360  7,36,000  

  

 Calculation of revised value of liability 

 6 – 8  Original 1,00,000 6%  2.673   2,67,300 

 6 – 8 Revised 1,50,000 7%  2.624   3,93,600 

 Amortisation Schedule / Carrying Amount on modification date 

 Year OP BAL Interst@6% Cash Flow  Cl Balance 

 1 7,36,000 44,160    1,00,000    6,80,160  

 2  6,80,160   40,810     1,00,000    6,20,970  

 3  6,20,970   37,258    1,00,000   5,58,228  

 4  5,58,228   33,494    1,00,000    4,91,721  

 5  4,91,721   29,503    1,00,000    4,21,225 

 Calculation of ROU Asset on date of modification 

 Cost on initial recognition       7,36,000 

 Less: Depreciation for 5 years on SLM basis (7,36,000/10*5) (3,68,000) 

 Carrying amount on the date of modification      3,68,000 

 Effect of Decrease in lease term 

 Particular’s  Carrying Amount  Reduction 2y/5y  Revised Amount 

 ROU Asset    3,68,000   1,47,200   2,20,800 

 Original Liability  4,21,225   1,53,925    2,67,300 

 .’. Gain on Modification     6,725     

 Lease Liability ………Dr.      1,53,925 

 To ROU Asset         1,47,200 

 To Gain on Modification /P&L           6,725   
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 Further effect of modified rate of discounting on original lease liability 

 Year  Particulars  Cash Flow Rate Sum of PVF  Amount  

 6 – 8  Original 1,00,000 6%  2.673   2,67,300 

 6 – 8 Original 1,00,000 7%  2.624  2,62,400 

         .’. Gain    4,900  

 

 Lease Liability ………Dr.       4,900 

 To ROU Asset          4,900 

  

 Increased in lease liability due to increased leased space  

 Year  Particulars  Cash Flow Rate Sum of PVF  Amount 

 6 – 8 Revised  50,000 7%  2.624  1,31,200 

 

 ROU Asset……………Dr.      1,31,200 

 To Lease Liability         1,31,200 

 

 Calculation of Revised Carrying amount of ROU Asset 

 Carrying Amount after modified lease term     2,20,800 

Less: Gain on increase on discount rate     (4,900) 

Add: Increase due to additional space      1,31,200 

 Revised Carrying Amount       3,47,100  

  

 Revised Amortisation Schedule 

 Year Op. Bal Interest @7% Cash Flow Cl. Bal 

 6  3,93,600  27,552    1,50,000   2,71,152  

 7  2,71,152   18,981    1,50,000   1,40,133  

 8  1,40,133   9,867    1,50,000   -  
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 Accounting Books of Lessor 

A37. Classifying of lease.  

 Fair Value on inception of lease     1,11,000 

 PV of lease payment        

 Year Cash Flow PVF@10.078% PV 

 1-10 15,000   6.124  91,860   

 10 30,000   0.383  11,490 

        103,350 1,03,350 

 As the PV of future covers substantially covers all of the Fair value of asset on the date 

of inception, hence the lease should be classified as finance lease.  

  

 For Recognition following should be calculated 

 Net Investment (at Fair value)     1,11,000 

 Cost of Goods Sold 

 Carrying Amount     1,00,000 

 Less: PV of URV    (7,660)    92,340 

 (20,000 * 0.383) 

 Revenue (Lease Receivable)      1,03,350 

 Initial Recognition:  

 Net Investment ……………..Dr.     1,11,000 

 COGS……………………….Dr.      92,340 

 To Revenue          1,03,350 

 To Property Held for lease       1,00,000   

 Amortisation Schedule 

 Year  Op Bal   Interest    Cash Flow    Cl Bal  

1 1,11,000  11,187   15,000   1,07,187  

2 1,07,187  10,802   15,000   1,02,989  

3 1,02,989  10,379   15,000   98,368  

mailto:PVF@10.078%25
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4 98,368   9,914    15,000   93,282  

5 93,282   9,401    15,000   87,683  

6 87,683   8,837    15,000   81,519  

7 81,519   8,216    15,000   74,735  

8 74,735   7,532    15,000   67,266  

9 67,266   6,779    15,000   59,046  

10 59,046   5,954    15,000   50,000 

 

 Sub Lease  

A38. The sublease is classified with reference to the ‘ROU Asset’ in the head lease (and 

NOT the ‘underlying building’ of the head lease). Hence, when assessing the useful 

life criterion, the sublease term of four years is compared with five-year ROU Asset in 

the head lease (NOT compared with 40-year economic life of the building) and 

accordingly may result in the sublease being classified as a finance lease. 

 

A39. The intermediate lessor classifies the sublease by reference to the ROU Asset arising 

from the head lease (i.e., in this case, comparing the three-year sublease with the five-

year ROU Asset in the head lease). The intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a 

finance lease, having considered the requirements of Ind AS 116 (i.e., one of the 

criteria of ‘useful life’ for a lease to be classified as a finance lease). 

 

A40. The intermediate lessor classifies the sublease by reference to the ROU Asset arising 

from the head lease (i.e., in this case, comparing the two-year sublease with the five-

year ROU Asset in the head lease). The intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as 

an operating lease, having considered the requirements of Ind AS 116 (i.e., one of the 

criteria of ‘useful life’ for a lease to be classified as a finance lease and since, it is not 

satisfied, classified the same as an operating lease). 
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 Sale and Lease Back  

A41. As the Building is sold and immediately leased back, it is case of sale and lease back. 

1.  Firstly, since the consideration for the sale of the building is not at fair value, Seller-

lessee and Buyer - lessor make adjustments to measure the sale proceeds at fair value.  

Thus, the amount of the excess sale price of ` 3,00,000 (`30,00,000 - `27,00,000) is 

recognised as additional financing provided by Buyer-lessor to Seller-lessee.   

2. Calculation of PV of future payments discounted @12% 

 Year   Cash Flow   Sum of PVF   PV 

 1-20   2,00,000        7.469  (approx.)14,94,000 

3.  As the installment of ` 2,00,000 represents repayment of additional finance as well as 

lease payments hence it becomes imperative to apportionment of PV of future payment 

into financing component as well as lease payment. 

 Particulars          Total    %    Installment 

 PV of future payments   14,94,000  100  2,00,000 

Less: Additional Finance   (3,00,000) 20.08     40,160 

.’. PV of lease payments   11,94,000 79.92  1,59,480 

4. Accounting: Seller Lessee  

a. At the commencement date, Seller-lessee measures the ROU asset arising from the 

leaseback of the building at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the 

building that relates to the right-of-use retained by Seller-lessee.  

 If (SP) `27,00,000 is received for asset of (CA)` 15,00,000 then what would be the 

carrying amount of asset retained / received back for which lessee will pay (SP) 

’11,94,000 and what will be the profit on asset sold. 

 Particulars     Fair Value Carrying Amount     Profit  

Total       27,00,000         15,00,000    12,00,000  

% of FV             100.00   55.56          44.44  

Asset Retained & Profit not Earned  11,94,000    6,63,333      5,30,667  

Asset Sold & Profit Earned    15,06,000    8,36,667       6,69,333 
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b. Journal Entry on commencement  

 Cash…………Dr.   30,00,000  

 ROU Asset …Dr.   6,63,333  

 To Building     15,00,000 

 To Financial Liability   14,94,000 

 To Gain on rights transferred    6,69,333 

5. At the commencement date, Buyer-lessor accounts for the transaction, as follows: 

 Building………………………Dr.  27,00,000 

 Financial Asset……………….Dr.    3,00,000 

 To Cash        30,00,000 

 Subsequently every receipt of every ` 2,00,000 will be accounted as follows 

 Lease Payments = `1,59,840 and Installment on Financial Asset = `40,160 

 Year     Op Bal     Int 12% Receipt Total  Lease            Inst.   

   A      B        C      D  E = C-D    F = A+B-E  

1 3,00,000 36,000 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,95,840 

2 2,95,840 35,501 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,91,181 

3 2,91,181 34,942 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,85,962 

4 2,85,962 34,315 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,80,118 

5 2,80,118 33,614 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,73,572 

6 2,73,572 32,829 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,66,241 

7 2,66,241 31,949 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,58,030 

8 2,58,030 30,964 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,48,833 

9 2,48,833 29,860 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,38,533 

10 2,38,533 28,624 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,26,997 

11 2,26,997 27,240 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 2,14,077 

12 2,14,077 25,689 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 1,99,606 

13 1,99,606 23,953 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 1,83,399 

14 1,83,399 22,008 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 1,65,247 
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15 1,65,247 19,830 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 1,44,916 

16 1,44,916 17,390 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 1,22,146 

17 1,22,146 14,658 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 96,644 

18 96,644 11,597 2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 68,081 

19 68,081 8,170  2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 36,091 

20 36,091 4,069  2,00,000 1,59,840 40,160 0 

  

 Transition Approach 

A42. Full Retrospective approach: Under this, lease liability and the ROU asset are 

measured on the commencement date i.e. 01/04/2017 using IBR at lease 

commencement date i.e. 12% p.a. 

 

1. Lease Lability on 01/04/2017 

 Year  Cash Flow    Sum Of PVF@12%   PV 

 3 years 2,00,000    2.402    4,80,400 

 

2. Amortisation Schedule 

 Year    Op Bal Interest@12% Cash Flow  Cl. Bal 

 31/03/2018   4,80,400    57,648   2,00,000   3,38,048  

 31/03/2019    3,38,048    40,566   2,00,000   1,78,614  

 31/03/2020    1,78,614    21,386   2,00,000    0  

 

3. ROU Asset Schedule 

 Year   Op. Bal  Depreciation  Cl. Bal 

 31/03/2018   4,80,400   1,60,134    3,20,266  

 31/03/2019   3,20,266   1,60,133    1,60,133  

 31/03/2020   1,60,133   1,60,133     0 
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4.  Ind AS 116 is applicable for the financial year beginning from 1st April 2019. Hence, 

2019-20 is first year of adoption and hence, comparative for 2018-19 needs to be 

restated and 1st April 2018 i.e. the opening of the comparative, is taken as transition 

date for adoption of this standard. Accordingly, 

  

 Calculation of adjustment to Retained Earnings 

 Carrying amount of ROU Asset on 01/04/2018  3,20,266 

 Carrying amount of Lease Liability on 01/04/2018  3,38,048 

 Difference          17,782 

 

5.  Journal Entry 

 ROU Asset…………….Dr.     3,20,266 

 Retained Earnings……Dr.      17,782 

 To Lease Liability       3,38,048 

 

 Modified Retrospective Approach 

 Alternative 1: Under this, Lease liability is measured based on remaining lease 

payments i.e., from 01/04/2019 to 31/03/2020, discounted using IBR on date of initial 

application being 0104/2019 i.e. 10% p.a. ROU asset at its carrying amount as if Ind 

AS 116 had been applied since the commencement date i.e. 01/04/2017 by using IBR 

as at transition date. 

1. Lease Liability: 

 Year   Cash Flow   Sum Of PVF@10%   PV 

 31/03/2020   2,00,000   0.9091   1,81,820 

2. Lease Liability & ROU Asset Schedule 01/04/2017 

 Year   Cash Flow  Sum of PVF@10%  Cl. Bal 

 3 Years   2,00,000    2.487    4,97,400 
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3. ROU Asset on the date of transition 01/04/2019 

 Year   Op. Bal  Depreciation   Cl. Bal 

 31/08/2018   4,97,400  1,65,800   3,31,600 

 31/03/2019   3,31,600  1,65,800   1,65,800 

 

4. Journal Entry 

 ROU Asset……………….Dr.      1,65,800 

Retained Earning…………Dr. (Bal. Figure)     16,020 

 To Lease Liability        1,81,820 

 

 Alternative 2: In this, lease liability is also measured based on remaining lease 

payments i.e., from 01/04/2019 to 31/03/2020 discounted using IBR on date of initial 

application of 01/04/2019 i.e. 10% p.a. Carrying amount of the ROU asset is an amount 

equal to the carrying amount of the lease liability on the date of initial application after 

adjusting for previously recognised prepaid or accrued lease payments.  

  

1. Lease Liability & ROU Asset on date of transition 01/04/2019 

 Year   Cash Flow   Sum Of PVF@10%   PV 

 31/03/2020   2,00,000   0.9091   1,81,820 

 In the given case as there are no prepayments or accrual items there is no impact on 

retained earnings as on the transition date. 

 

2. Journal Entries 

 ROU Asset……………….Dr.      1,81,820 

 To Lease Liability        1,81,820 
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IND AS 28 
Q1. Entity XYZ acquired a 10% interest in entity ABC for Rs. 100,000 at 1 June 2017. The investment 

in entity ABC was accounted for as equity investment (not held for trading) for which irrevocable 

option has been availed of routing the changes in fair value through other comprehensive income 

and related FVOCI reserve. 

Entity XYZ recognised an increase in fair value of Rs. 60,000 in other comprehensive income for 

the year ended 31 March 2018. 

Entity XYZ acquired an additional 25% interest in entity ABC for Rs. 4,00,000 at 1 April 2018 and 

achieved significant influence. The fair value of entity ABC's net assets was Rs. 500,000 at June 

2017 and had increased to Rs. 800,000 at 1 April 2018. 

Entity ABC recorded profits after dividends of Rs. 200,000 between 1 June 2017 and 1 April 2018. 

How should an entity account for an investment in an investee on account of piece-meal acquisition 

when such investment provides it significant influence over the investee? 

 

Q2. A Limited holds 25% interest in B Limited which is accounted for as  investment in associate as per 

the equity method  in  the  consolidated financial statements of A Limited. During the financial year  

ended  March 2018, A Limited sold its 15% interest in B  Limited to  a third party X Limited for 

Rs. 80,000 and continues to hold 10% interest in B Limited as its financial asset. Carrying value of 

25% investment in consolidated financial statements on the date of sale is Rs. 120,000 and fair 

value of retained interest is Rs. 65,000. Cumulative share of associate’s other comprehensive 

income Rs. 20,000 represents exchange difference relating to a foreign operation. How should this 

sale transaction and financial asset be accounted for in the financial statements of A Limited? 

 

Q3. XYZ Ltd. has a 40% stake in its associate ABC Ltd. During the period, XYZ  Ltd. sells 10% of its 

stake in ABC Ltd. for consideration of Rs. 80,000. From the date of the partial disposal, XYZ Ltd. 

will continue to recognise its remaining 30% interest in ABC Ltd. as an associate. At the date of the 

partial disposal, the net asset carrying value of ABC Ltd. is Rs. 300,000. Goodwill was calculated 

at Rs. 30,000 at the date of acquiring  the associate and there has been no impairment. Cumulative 
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share of associate's other comprehensive income Rs. 20,000  represents  actuarial gain or loss. How 

to account for partial disposals of interests in associate or joint venture where the equity method 

continues to be applied? 

 

Q4. An associate X holds 20% shares of another associate Y and associate Y holds 20% shares of 

associate X. The share capital of each of  the associate is 100,000 shares at Rs. 10 each. X's profit 

excluding its share in Y = Rs. 100,000; Y's profit excluding its share in X = Rs. 100,000. 

Considering above facts, how would entity X and Y account for reciprocal holdings? Also, whether 

adjustment for the cross holdings is required to be made in the earnings per share calculation? 
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IND AS 33 IND AS 33 IND AS 33 IND AS 33     
EARNING PER SHAREEARNING PER SHAREEARNING PER SHAREEARNING PER SHARE    

 

Q5. From the Following Compute the basic EPS. 

Net Profit for year ended 31/12/2018     18Lakhs 

Net profit for year ended 31/12/2019     60Lakhs 

No. of equity shares O/S on 1/1/2019     20Lakhs 

Bonus issue on 30/12/2019   2 shares for every  share held 

 

Q12. K LTD is a Listed entity that made a after tax profit of ` 350 Lakhs for year ended 

30/09/2018. There is no discontinued operation. At 1st Oct 2017 K LTD had 700 

Lakhs equity shares and 300 Lakhs preference shares. The preference shares, were 

correctly presented in Financial statements. In the year ended 30/9/2018 K LTD 

Declared and paid a Dividend of 12 paise per shares to ESH and 6 paise per share to 

preference shareholders.On 31/12/2017, K Ltd made a fully subscribed right issue of 2 

shares for every 7 shares held at ` 1.35 per shares. The fair - value of equity shares on 

31/12/17 was ` 1.80.Throughout Financial year K ltd had 200 Lakhs convertible Loan 

on which interest of 5% is payable annually, the carrying value of Liability element of 

the Loan at 1st Oct 2017 was ` 230 Lakhs and effective rate of Interest was 7% the rate 

of Income tax is 20%. Compute Basic and Diluted EPS for the year ended 30/9/2018. 
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IND AS 37  
PROVISION, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

&CONTINGENT ASSETS 

 

Q8.  Entity A is a dealer in washing machines. Entity A offers to its customers a scheme 

whereby it states that after a period of 3  years, the entity offers  to  buy back  the  

washing machine at a fixed price which is expected to be less than the fair value of 

the machine at the end of three years. The credit emanating there from will be 

required to be used by the customer for buying a new washing machine, i.e., new 

washing machine will be sold at a discounted price. Past experience indicates that 

customers generally opt for this scheme. At the time of sale   of the first washing 

machine should entity A recognise any provision in this regard? 
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                      IND AS 38  
INTANGIBLE ASSETS    

  

Q1. On 02/01/2019 X LTD, bought a trade - Market from Y LTD for ` 500,000. X Ltd 

retained an independent consultant who estimated the useful Life of trade mark to be 

20 yrs. Its unamortized cost to Y Ltd was ` 3.5 Lakhs. Calculate the amt of 

amortisation to be recognised by X Ltd. 


